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$Ea:$og.fl ogcStr$:qp:c{ o"i'Ed og6c$:oem8gc6crd ogo@:cf. oqca8:<5lccElrr

seEq86,copQc+.%E $E6@:ogo@'qp'80 oo8po:ocn ogo@:{Eepogp!:qp:cr} g8:oq.{l

ogotsq$'g$ o@E:otso$Q:a:$6lccp!n $E6S:ogoE E$ oo6po:oo: ogo@:c.,r.:2o8cca$r.rgp!:

qp:c{cc$o0o"- -$8t Fair value oo69o6ocroq.fl ogoDq$:oofE: o$Q:a:$6la:pQrr

p:)a:2Q$Eq6o6lsaopo$ qe,5q1c6o::ocr $86$:o9o@:g0 mq8:c38:o:ooo
ogo@:o<;2o6ocn,.,gg!:qp:c{ oc$Q:o@E:obp8: c,'$plrrogo@:{EepogpQ:qp:oooT co:Gql?f$

ogo@r{Eepogp!:qp:o$$:ccQp8:9 $Eo6[cmocn ogo@:$:qc'q].64 {crncr:saqc6
sa$1:rm$o6mq8:q8 oq: ca8:dlccpQrr

oc69oc7:pp- +Ent${,q$fl ogetstr$:qp:go t$$cno$p81 -

USD

.,;ocq 1g6r oo8crc ?c qo6 cpG;.<x>

.pco qpEr oo8cu ?c qo6 c??g.(x)

EUR SGD

ca00.9o ea9.9e

"GgJ.g,, coco.(x)

p-g siolqog$ moloQo5qp: (Interest income and Expenses)

Go;pqo$$:g$ of8:m@)sccf,r ogoq:o@:ospmqpmo6:g:rn:o7;g$ Hetd for trading g$

Available for sale qp:sq oo|:qocn ogpaoq{E<p QE{E<-,gE!:qp:r saofrg$

oSlo8qp:rnro?'4 saof ,qogg$ saof :c2$cqloQo6q1rr saoE$$ ccc6{Eep otipropo8eoq8:q8
effective i nterest method $Qr:q8roqrcA8: qopQrr

Effective interest method {-dp arc8{Egcmcosaodf ]ooo:cc$ q$qpt1o6oc6
qp3G+ccD oofiqogqp:o5 ogpooq:qi83$fQ oo:q$mo$qp:eri oqpqo$$:qp:of oan6qn6

o cmqpQ:cu6:o6q$6 cc$r Effective i nterest rate {ccpQgo o goEo@:oq:mq1pmo6: o5 o$.g$t

ccc6o6:(cQ.) QgpQ,ocmcmcuoooT o$"9$:oEc<5lo6ogoo:oq1$8,({.1 ogcucE,i,$E,qp,{

oqpoGq'48epq88g0+$ oo:q$a::o$qp:er5 $cD:o8ccoSoo8o$Q:cp. sao8oo?lGoil?qlcod

q$:o:$6arE!rr %c8qc6gqp:c{ ogoq:o@:oq:mqpmo6:g:or5 u:qpr:o6:rjl
saqlc6ococ8g:rn;o7:oof8: oep:a38:6lccpQn {.o"$ oEcc5lo6ogo@:q:,flpqqp:of

o$ca8:op:m:$E:ofi6lr Effective interest gQ a:cr5{Ec+ccD c3cmo8gp:op$ o$oo8o@:r
og8ooEqo{o8qp, t$-"?,+}$G@,ipr Goil?Gq3qp:c{co$: op$ a38:op:m:6lccpQrr

o$Q:oqpmrfl:qp: ooq$,x$qn8iccd o$Q:oqpcq$:ocm omoGq{Eep qpfugqp:o\
o$$:qp:oo3c8 s{ryS{HDd co$Q:oqpo,gpqp: of8:m$E:qpQgoSqc8saoq$g

oqcr5lo6ogcns&o8# cc'il,qq$stfiio"- caof:q$:c{ oc6cuc6oc3o9o6pp7:Qdl

-d,



I
I
t
t
I
I
I
T

$$cn $E e cm:qp:ocfi oB E oc6
.loco 196roo8co (pc) qc8og.c2$og:ooo ?Em%oD
ogpo EqE :o6:qp:ood go5 gqp:

p9 o$oo8oqp,g$ ocrrS<lgpqogqp (Fees and Conrmission Inome)

o$oo8oqp'gQ ocrr5oq8trgqp'{ Goo?qls,:,$$ o$ooh qfl-d-q$$ mqE:oepca8:

6lccpQr

par o$oSoo?qcg (Dividend income)

o$o6oogqogc{ oo:oq1gqp: qQfu Qficcd"t -otf oo@E:flEcnocngrdl mq8:caE:<5lccp}rr

p€r ofiixqog (Other income)

o@:qogo38 $EeS:ogotsoToSgqp:gqflcrnocn o,fl:o$o6qp:r qp:c5loE6lccElrr

p1r o$o6:odp,5o:$qp: (Employee CompensaUon)

(m)o$o6:ccc6croqp8 {tq$llof; (Staff provident fu nd)

o$o6:ccc6cno qp8{q$Qog { -dgo c':opqo 99 op$a38: go oE:o:$E:$Ep: cuopcomo<5[

oo$6$ -.'510 o$o6'qp:9 oolo q$:E cac3:d:r:p$o8dr:pQl

(o)o9olG:o+E (Bonus Plan)

ocu5ccpQ oc'Se5sagg<.,S<rno8qp:af. !ooo<.r:ocr opo8qp,g$ sa{6mq8:Ef$E:qc6qp:

o76oo8$:oqcc6 oacr5er586s76qp"tqp't caQo@:oo3cr5 oo:q$oo$g$ ocq:ot1o6sa$6

mq8:a38:6lccpQrr ocvS-d -qpmo6:oq oo:q$a;o$flocnor5l ({.)oo8 caco?sr@qp:

o@$ cco o @6p:sE q oo:q$ oro 
$ flo cmo 5l qpo:qc6 qp' 8ru6 6lccp! rr

por o8ogg$

Current tax assets qQ tUUitities qpssD: tax authorities qp:9 E$-dqfl.d fc|) g8r{.-{.
oo:qop!<.2 oioccD rxncnoodfq8 qc8qc8c5lcoglrr o8ogg$o{oE cc$ ocqg6ol

o g$opQ:@6{c6ocm oE%ocrfqp ogpooepsa8epsocmoqfi cco6go6o'oca sag$q$'$$

oo:q$ oo6$o:clccA$r



$$tn$Eecm:qp:ocrScSSocE
..,;oco qq& oo8co (pc) qc6oE<n$+o- f6@%o8
ogpoEqE:o6:qp:oo<5[goS gqp:

?€r ogpocEq$e$qp'9$ o<xq$a,:o$ql

(m) m+0. mq8: oepca8:fii8:$ oylc6oc6o[ of8:cl91

.DgpoG6f@q1pmo6:qp: (Financial Instruments) qpr{ orncE<5lsaof8: o{pom;
|@:o:6lcc$rr

(c)Financial lnsUuments at Fair value through profit and loss

cmcoofoq8: oep8:q$ {"oqo8 $$oc:Sq$saqc6 crf8oo8o:ocro crgpocq:

{Et-qpmo6:qp: 6lo86lccpQrr

"r{61 
mqpmo83qp:sns mqp:q8 Fair value E$ mqE:a38:$: Transaction

costqp:cf o,fl:o$o8mq8:q8 ofc6{lc8cr{06lcopQu Fair value o@E:oDgqp:

g$sa$o6oo?qGtqpssr: o,$psa$o8 mqE:qE "Net gains and losses on financial

instruments" o:SlE:opSQ mq8:oq:a38:t5lccpQr q8r{"+$ oo6ccc6$ oof:o8ogqp:

qflqE so,$po$oEmqE:q8 oepcaE:dlcc$rr Q9$osp8:q1$E:r ooSq$E:rn:
ooep8:oo<.:S $p6ocac+.%E mq8:oqqE:dlerElrr

fu)Loan and Receivables

Loan and Receivables {-dp oep8:q1$Eocmoqpqc6oflcc$ ?o- ({.)
q:$o6o:ocn o$Q:c5lo8ocm Non-derivative financial assets qp:c{ {cQa:E!r
g$o6l8:oporac8o38 ocr5qp:flogqp:r ogcuc6"il$qp,' oq;'ogqp'g$ @pr8o<.r:ogqp'
6lo8opQr (cJ) o) oqpolcc8QE: E$-dqh"d qQ8g$qp'?o.r g8:of.ra:
coc6c&qQ8gQqp:sa$6 cco6go6oo6$6lcc$l mlp:q8 ofc6flc8a:c6{Eocm
otloEqp: o6lsao8 Fair value E$ mqE'q8:oo6pp: oqcc8QE:q8 eftective interest

method $Q o$$:oqp6lccplrr g8:of. sao6lq8qfiocm oop:o8ogqp:crf "raof :o8og "
o?GcD or5lE:op$Q o,i:o$oEmqE:qE oo6$c5lcoplrr o$8:oqpcqgqp: fi6lmc'cpQ:
so,$psapo8mel8:o38ca:"o$$roqpam"qo6 " or5l8:op$$ oo6$6lcc$rr

(p)HelO to maturity

E6E6fl6caqp? ecrftSeql$""de qoo*$: cco69o6oo6po:ocm ccc6o6:
oopgc6cop$ offi cft o8o,"du? eplgoSo:ocm Qo cccf .r,r?oE q:$o6o:
ocro$ffi c{EcorE@sccy: financial asset qpr"{ {.qdcoElrr ooq:ot5locm

,r,Dcr,gQ$ E+ooda"&$rdr? o9:$o6o cn o {$ goo8cm Ava i la b I e-for-sa le sa$6

c$,&o)erol7osdod! (c;) cuoog8: a:c8o6: o o.o epcf <5lm Cu rre nt a sset qp :o$E
coofpS$ (cJD orc@o6 E&r,D Non-current asset sa$E oo69o66lcc$rr m$:q8

.J



$$ cn$E e cn:qp: ocrSoB E oc8
.pco EgErelo8co (pc) qc6og.c2$q:ocn +6rr%c6
o gpc qqE:o6:qp:oc dgoS gqp:

3?

ofc6flcr5oc6{Eora otlo8qp:sadlsao8 Fair value E0 mq8:a38: o<s6pp:

oqccBQE:qE rffective interest method $0 t:qEroqta38:6lccplrr saop:oEogqp:g$

oo8ccc8$ "Interest Incom e" $Qco$ro.tn8: m$Q:oqpoffi qp3 flcmdlm "Im pa i rment

on other a sset" $$coE!to.m8 : satfl:sapoEmq8:q8 oa6p6lccpQ rr

(9)Available-for-sale

ooe6oo6p6l o{pom' (e) {1f+$ occcr5{Eocm qQEg$qp'{ Available for sale

o$6 coo6go8r5la:plrr

mlp:q8 Fair value $$ mq8teqqE:<SlccpQrr sa{61 Fair value o@Ero5go@$

$Eo6lcmocn sagsa$c8qp:gv:: other Comprehensive Income qE o<sEpdla:$rr

{.qr"a8 or$8:oopcqXqp:r monetary instrument op.g${Eocn

$E6S:ogoSog<.:Sq$:qp: o$E:c5go@E $Eodfcmocn satfl:saEoEqp'+0 effective

interest method EA qc6q;c6orocr saof:oQo8qp:cr|g o$ym$o6mq&q8
o<s6$6la:p!rr gE:op.rro: mq8:g ogo8<-roSocmsadl Xcum Other Comprehensive Income

qE oq:ca8:5.ocy: 99o618: satipmpoErn: Equity 9 m,frpopo8mq8:d o@E:oDmqE:

oqcaE:<5larpQrr effective interest method Ee oan6qn6$ qflcmocnsa{rqp,{
otipsa$o8mq8:q8 oo6$6lco2!rr 9&of. sao6[q8 qfio- o$o6oogqp:c{X

sa,$pmpo6mqE:q8 oc6p6la:p! rr

Available for sale sa$6 cco69o6o:;ocr cD?FoGTqqEg$oaE unquoted share qp:6lo8

dlcrElrr Fair Value ooqpgoof8r@q$ ocr55ocn =r{61 unquoted share qp;o}

o$Q:ool2cqqqp: tro8ooS$' "11$fl-d qq8:ocrSoqp$$ o<s6p6lccp! rr

(g)Other Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Other Non-derivative Financial Liabilities {.-t mEp:q8 ofcr5fic6oo6ccc6olocn

e$"1"{"6qp: qc6o<.:S$ r1$fl-d Fair Value oo6[q8 oo69o6oo6p6lccplrr

oEcc6QE:cmcoqp:q8 Amortised cost method $E ofE:oo8pc5lccplrr ocfiq8 rair

Value through profit or loss sa$Ecco69o6o:ocn c:9plDGqr{Eepoo:q$cmo$qpt

ofl6lrr Amortised cost $$cco69c6oc6po:ocn o?poGq{Eepouq$mo$ qp:q8
customer qlrrtQ ocrSqp:9 sa6egqp:p$ o$::oq:oTogqp:,5lo8,5lccplrr



I
r
r
I
r
I
I
r
T

T

T

r
r

$$cn$Eecm:qp:ocr5o88oc$
.1oco qg& elo8co (gc) qc6op2$o?to- f6@%o8
ogpocpgp:o6:qp:sao6[go5gqp:

(o) oep:oepa38:$E: +E -S't o?c&x$E&

oc'5op! ogFDGq'qqE gQqp'+$ ouq$mo$qp:c{ g8:of.rn: oo8$Eo6l{$$flocm rair
vatue $$ of8:m$ mq8:oq:q8:<5lcc$rr

oocficcpQ o$DcEqq8e$qp'+$ <.'oEcco5$ g8:qQfug c2$q:ocrsa{$ ({"1
g8:qp8g$rn: o@:qqp:ocp. -.y,Q c$o$E:ocno*51 mq8:9 ogo6<-r<.:S<5lccp!u

ogpDGE{Eepoo:q$oro$qp'4t qc8$oSocnsadl (d) ccc8o6:ocq;Eq$ocnodl
mq8:gogo8 ooS6lcc$lr

(o) ogpnoqqQ8e$ +E oo:q$oo$qp:c{ q$6ooDS$E:

eoGssq e$6g0 (iiqlEoa;5c'cpQ:ocm8:rocn:o8c{cr mqE:gE:q$dauSqnS

{.oqo8 qQ8e$qp' o?"6"iq$+Q oo:q$mo$qP: o.xoqqcrp$o{$ o6$pgc6opQ:

$6o61'pqpoo5cupQ:ocrn8: ogpooE{Eep qgse$t$ oo:q$mo$qp:of ?$SE
ocl::o8<;cn-4- o:c6cq$gp:o6:q8 oo6$6lccpQrr Master netting agreements g€
ooEoc6ogocD owDcEmqpmo6:qp:c{g cegF)ocq:soSool$ gp:o6:ogE gross

. basis $$oo6$dopQrr

(tp) Fair Value o? oQ:EoEEe:

ogpDGE@qpoo6:qp:mo:o7:c{ cnEp:qE Fair value E$ o:q8ta3E:6lccpQu mEp:fl rair
value {crpQ?o G.,:?olp-,$$ o[poGgmqpmo6:qp; saoep8:sao<.:S $Eocrso{$
qEoo:c$c8qGcD ({") qflc$cBocm m$:o:q*$EccpQ,' oqcc6Q8:cmcuqp:q8

E$or$Ee%E coc6,5cq$"g'nqo"r, o$Q:o$cc$ q$:cu6:qp: saof8: Fair vatue cr|

cco6go66lco$r Fair vatue occo69o6$Eocm unquoted equity qpr4t qS,Qd
qq&o$$:gg o8qE6ocmog.fl o$$:oo{?offi 4.so6[q8 cco69o6oo6$6tccpQl

?-cor cawr:c.f F{eug$+: o$Q:oopory1$6o6[$E: ( rmpairment of Financiat Assets)

(m) oq:ogge BoEcoEGSfr

ocfioSoqpoggQ @foaEo<xogqp:c{ ornc66l6{$6g$:qP: ospggo}cspQoc,,otsr
Im pa i rment e$6$q;os clccplr

:

r
:

r
T

!
!
T



$$ o$E a cn:qp: ocr5o3 8 oc8
.1oco qg6roo8co (gc) qc6oEc2$og:ocm gEocac6
o gpo epg8:o6:qp:o o <ngoS gqp:

oE?8ocilGo6l68: (Individual Assessment)

(c) oqpog ($ so?s({) g6po7:rn: oo:oq1q$ogogc6p: oE.9 qc6o,5l8'(g,,) l€ saoc8
clc6qcE$E:r

fu) oq8:Qogo8oq:og (overdraft) Q6$$ ogoqo::S: qq$fln- ocncnccpQ g$Qo:,oca
<.rcnococ8 qc6o6l8: (go)q8 ooc6ocqp"a$EE,

(p) qq$fiocn oocnccpQ g$pp:,ocn <.rcnoooc6 qc6or5lc1 (go) oocqpq$ocrScupQ:

dcro8gp:ocm Credit weakness qp;$6o61'oE@Ea

oq:ogc{ Impairment E6oEE q:$o8q$caqc6 ocfiarpQ ogpooq:sa8qE,iocnol.$
o$Q:oopcql$Eo@E: sao@c8sro:qp:flr ofic7:cc6<5la:pQrr {{.o-
sao@)cr5sr@)sqps fldlm oq:ogrn: Impaired loan o$6cco69o6$: m{61 Impairment

ocD(T)sroB mq8:ca8:<5lcc$u

cqsGtqp: o$Q:oqpcqlctccdo? oo8$olocn sEo@c6$o:qp:qE orncBdlof.
dlo8<5lccpQn

c )o go q:r1a7 ( Borrower) ccp! c3crgo c:gf)Dcq:sc$oo+ saooEsaS$6ooToq$E:

;)mq1p6l ccomoT2Qqp:sD3 {pornc6$E:r cQc6qcq$qc8qc8p8ar

? )o goqq3tccg! o7!mq8r,5"?q$ saoDss?crrc flo1$E:r
!)ogoq:qa7efi E:gp:oEo76c$:g: ocm8:gocupQoo6$Ecc$ ooSooqoffiE:r
g)ogoq:opaTqp:or5 p$coEQoo:ca8:$Eog$ sao$oGfqps{ o8flc8oo$EccpQ cco8:qp:

{"""ao6 8:go:oq:oo$saoqqp' $$q8:q8$6oc5l'cu$E:r

ocnSccp! o q:egrn:o7:oqc8 Im pa i rment $Eoo$E ccpQ gaooc6soor:qp:fl rofl 
"S$Sq$

o qpo goEq q;E:Egm: ooop:go a7:co6c5lcc$rr

Impairment $Eoo$Ear$ gaoo:c6sa@:qp! 
fl<5lmsalc6lo6og8:o8:glol present value g$

oq1:ogoi carring amount of. $:1*qc6c{ impairment toss o$E ofp sa$o6mq8:qE
oq:a38:<5lcog!r

oq1:ogrn:S$codccrro8Sq$,r$E$Eooogdlm allowance for loan impairment mqErg
ooSqc8dlcopQr sa{o%q:Gtqp:rr: c$sa6ocnqEQrc'c6,qpr$0 q:ti1p9pp:rn:
cco69o6[i:<5lm <xrSqcrffiy&rco?9u ocoEmq8:g o<.:Sqc6o;oo: GqlsGgqp:

E$c\rdqfi*rcD s*sgo6@q8q6 o8ogse$EooSp<5lco$n

gaoopcoRolPq*qc6

E$,D+Efcs'Jqrlo.5d A$EEqoEsq 99o618: oq:ogcuc8cql$ocncnorl Jo/o .,|
ocffiDq8so5$@:6lccpQn

30

:

t
I
I
t
I
t
I
I
t
I
t
I
T

T

I
T

T

T

I



$$cn$Eecn:qp:ocr5o38ocf
Joc" ?$lq- (?c) qc6o+.c?$+o.- fSoqp8

(o) oq:o6qp:ra: $$copffioffi: (Rescfredured and Restructured loans)

oq'ogoEgcca? Credit *::h"r, 
_$6oqocn *{$g ocusccp! sEo6lE ,Ed,

rn:qo7s8:oc6 0q1:osrn, 
.t:O^or+_1fl EF?sdc]ji {{. E$-_d d$p,Es,%-s

Et-d""_'"-ql?tm:cco6o6:pE1e^;g^e;,_!tog"r,rS--4,--s-'g6--.!-"i"g;s,
$E:ofl.dlo8dlccggrr 8ao$"|a?ql,t E$-d $E-tJ,ocD cqrsGt irenesotiated roan)
qlxm: cco6go6o:ocn ccc6o8:qp:g$ -d E$-d n",nqlflqp; flofi om$@pQg1
SpT6,Jlccp!r

(o) Held to Maturity

Hetd to M aturity_sas6 of Eoo8o;o cD oqpoc qs 
lsr$rEF$tlqPs@: o gq8.ocm oq.$

ogcm:8:oE:9F,? o8flosGo$sccpQ impairment E6;";;'io-.so@sqps firfidEo6n:co6 <5lcopQrr

o{6lsaooc6sao:qp:fic5lcn oos?!o0g ne$qt}n"r, 
"t$qrepS+$ 

qro8
c415o::oc:: Impairment ross sm;gp6$$-d mlc.,o6 ogcn8,oE:g present varue
4.rl s:qc:qlc6of impairment rorr "rEs"-{soE eqcc6oc6e
crncoqE Impairment toss ccpQrqqo,s qe.-tl"E" toss cq15[i:9
$6qlc6)$E:$6<5lm g8:ra;ofp-gO tqS,%SE$d

(ru)Avatiabte for Sale (AFS)

stment qp:oqcE Impairment $Eocn
or5 Fair value ccE! g8,rrr:,ooSg

Market eqpc6ogos$E:r Issuer (or) Obligor
oqpE:qp:dloEr5lco$rr

{rjl nfS e$ Fair value 9 Impairment losssoo:f o@:S:qcsccD ocn(y)sm; Equity g og1,o$oS mq8:cf.oFE 
Ell

Equity Investment AFS qp:o1o1cc6oc6e crncoqE Fair varue of:cmocnsadl other
Comprehesive Income c2E mq8:cg8:oo6EEi:r <roEm sa,ip oSo6 mq&q8
oq:a3€:i-p9 Impairment r-oss qp:c{ reversar-g1"?oge-q,r, {.r"as D-ebt rnvestment
qp:$Eloil8X Reversa I Q1ca8cloplrr
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$ $cn$ E e cn : qp: oc'SoBEocB

..1oco ggErcoEcu (pc) qc6oEc2$og:oan gEmqc6
cagpc ep gp:o6: qp:oo<f goS gqp:

?-ccr ctl€ oc6cuc8ca$

ogg$ ooE-n6"1$qp:q8 ocr5qp:q8o:fiecn mq8:5p o6ogr cuc6o<-:Sc{Eoor8o:
GaDGtr m8ogqpa --4+$ highly liquid investment qp:dlo86lccElrr o{c5l Investment

qp'ccd ogcr::o$Eo$E:etsq$ o.t$..auS"a$: o$$:oS&o5g copQ c3cno8gp:cop$ Rist

ofiocn Investment qp:crf {c$<la:p!l

?-c"F QooQEog2QTQo:$Q:cqp

QocoQ8ogp!:sar{psaor:rn'o?'4 mgp:qE: qqE:o$Q:$g oq:a38:6lccpQn {ogp!:cc$
saqcc5lo8cmcu%E E:go:oep sadpopo8qp: ocficf.8:oE$So@ffi: gE:er5o$Qeof

.i@dAOqgo {&m$Eq1E {ogpQ:oiXq8:o$$:crf QoccQ8og$:o$69o6o6:o8<5lco$rr
sam:{:o8o6 caQ8:qp:dq$qn"- o$p:c{QocoQ8<;gpQ:sa$6 occo69o66lrr o$:ocn$fi8
o8$: d6:SE oE oQo6 qp:ro: o n:opo8m q8:$qf i,6la:$ rr

QoccQ8ogpQ:g$ oc6c8{ono{pom:oEpi caoq;6locmo8o6oQ&qp:oS on:o8cccEo6:
ooppQ o casa 51 9E :of .rn: cS:S:EmqE :o:fl61 a:pQ rr

mqp:mq8:q8:p:oqccf clcac:Q8o$9cg$ sa$:QocoQ8ogpQ:qp:of Xq8:o$$:9ggo6l8:
o$$:oopl$ Impairment loss tfic5lm;ppSg oo6S<5lopQn clcao:Q8opo5 ccc6o6:9o
sam$.saero8ofl cc$oqc8 g8:sn: o$$:ooqp6lu

QoccQ8og$sqpssrr3 @E:cq$o$8'+pDE'"af$fl-d o$$:saooTqS q1p:o@gqpQ: (straisht-

Li ne basis) $$ococ$oo6$61 oca:o8cccEo:6:qp: oof E:o$$:oolpqc6qc66lccpQ,

oc?:oEccc6o6: (+E)

saoeo:c6saE go-oo

9c:q6:saooc6op;S8oE91 g
oo6ooo6<rnp o

o{orno1Q {:+:oo6o8qoD gU)
o.61$ oc8cE{<rn cG

QoccQE.gpQ: qossDs g&o?.d cc<.$ooEctr:ocr -$8r (carring varue) ccpQ

E$-dqfi$E-d o$$ lneoverable vatue) oc6 qpQ;otccd,y?o?oqccD oo$ooqqp:

flcmdlm E$ord o$DE gfrr$xlccpQr o{6lo3eqS+€ oo8cco6$ 9o69 (p-cA) oaS

oo6$o:cl2Q so?& en?6d.dr

rq



$$cn $E e cn:qp: ocfi o38oc6

.;oco ggErco6co (pc) qc6oEc2$og:ocn pEmqc6
oqpcEgp:o6:qp:mo6[9o5gqp:

@E:cql$o$$:r oa7:oEcoc6o6'90 o$$:ootrpqpQ:co6:qp:of ogpooepEq$og:ofE: E$-d
SoEp: c$sa6o$ pfl $E:9pp:Eto?66lccpQrr

QoccQ8ogpQsqp:sa): oep8:qlgEoar5cupQ:ocm8'({"1 qE'{ oc7:pfiE:gsaqcr5lo8

8:go:oq:odpo$o6qp:oqfl$EqEocr5cupQ:ocm8: 98:o|.ofmq8:9 ooSqc8dlcopQr {{.
QoccQ8ogpQ: ooSqc6$E:gqflcrnocn ca$o6({.) sa,fl:o}QoccQ8ogpQ: ooSqc8ocrq6(1

o,fl:opo8mqE:q8 oq:a38:c5lccpQrr

?-c?r o8oq.c{Eqcsd "qg-"gp} (Intansible Asset)

Intansible assets qp:g$oo8r:cr5$ m1p:o38 gE'ofSS gq8:o$Q:$$ mq8:q&dlccglu
oqcc6oc8QcrncuqE gqE:o$Q:9ggod& o$Q:oqp$ Impairment loss {fl.5lm6pSg
oo6p6lcopQr oc7:oEanc$o6: cco69o6$Eocm Intangible asset qp:c{ qlp:oS$qpQ: (Straight

line basis) $$ o$$:oolp$: oq8:oqpcril?l(Impairment loss) oo$ooqfi6lm o$8:oq2q191
pp?66lcoeqrr o$Q:oqpqp:c{ sa,$psa$o8mq8:qE ospca8:c41561o$r on:o8ccc6o6'g$
o$Q:oqpg2Q:c'c6:qp:of gEop$$cu$c7:cc66lcoE!r Software c$Eo8g$ q:[g$qp:ol
o$.e$'sacg,o8ccc6o8csD: (co) gE sa$6 ccoEgo6$: o{6lo{$cmcuoo38:

.o$Qeoopc5lccplu

?-cgr ForceclbsedPropefties

Forceclosed Propefties qps?D oo@:qc$qo@$ sa$2QsaoSEoor o68o6o8Q8:$6oo
c86:qo:oam ogpl:qp:$E$: cc$o$ocnoq'tr$,q$ gq8:o$Q:saqc6 +d,ep-$8,8$
oo6$6lccpQl

?-cgr Non-flnancial Assetqp:o$Q:oo1Bq$E,

iocoQ8ogpQ:r Investment propefties g$ forceclosed properties Q{pcn Non-financial asset

qp3sDs gEopoc$ocpQ:ocmEa ccoSooEo$Q: (Carrying vatue) -d$$q$eet$o$8:
oc8qp:oqoo: oo$ooqflol8oc$copQ:ocm8: o$Q:oopcqlg flroflo$:oEgqp:

$F?66lcoeqrr o{cl o$ooqopQfl6lm carryins amount m p$q$Eod-$Q' (Recoverabte

value) oepc6coploo8 oqpq?ffi<5la:pQr Recoverable value {-dp oo7:o8o$Q:
(value-in-use) $ o{o&p ryEo<rSo:ccp$ Fair value {e+n8 qp:GcDocDcn$6opQrr

Carrying amount -d Recoverable amount ocf qp:oE6lm

o$$: oopoq jp$6oq&a3&ilc4Qr
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$$cn $E 0 cn:qp: ocr5o3EocE

..1oco lg8roo8co (pc) qc6og.c2$og:ocn qEoqc8
ogpo E gp:o6:qp:oo <fl go5 gqp:

?-cG, q8*og (Share capital)

cno$q8:$:og (oridinary Share) qps?D GtcDs ({.) sa$:qQfuQoEq6q6$$
o o: q$o::o$o flo cn o g g1c.:Scrnq8 qp:erl QE {E X $66l coplu

?.cp o[ir:oo:q$ano$qp,

oor5af.o$oo8gqp:saoan8 +6n?$nQ'{1$oaE GtcosGqio$lq8qocc:ocr: o<.xq$oo$qp'4

{cQ,5lccpQn oEgEoqE: oo:o6q$oo$fl<5lm c'cc6c8:oo:q$oo$sa$E ccoEgo8p:

o8g6ocqp6lm coc6cE:ogo6ocnoo:q$oro$ o$6oo6$SlopQrr m1p:qE
cc$oQocnoq:g1$:$E cco8go8[i: oqcc6oc8Qcrncoq8 ne$qr{oSo6l'p cco69o6<5lccp!rr

?-cor qpo:qlcfqp:

egc3 *o+E$ oo8o8cmco$Erp+$ oo6oo6$ gocssaqr o?gpqsq {""qo8 o76c$:9
cco69o6o:ocm opQ:q1p:qp:saq coc6flcmcuq8oo:q$oo$g:fidql8cup!:ocm8;r sa{61
oo:q$oo$sns Go:cqlq$ooa"6 oq6c$:er5 o8rn:gqp:8:oge8S8: (Outflow of resources)

$Eo<il'pq8cu$:ocm8;r o{dl oo:q$oo$fio- GtocDcr)sD, 
"?Ed8o6qgo' 

%n8qln6$E cc$ooSoop30co$:ocm8: qpo:o{o6sa$6 (Rrovision) cco8goE6lopQr

qpo:qcr5qp:c{ coc6floocrn8:og:o$.9$:91 ra:o8<n6ooq$oqcf g6opn:cc6$
mqE:p8$18:gqp: pp?66lcceqrr 98:qpor:q;c6ra: o<.r:q$oc$ooop<5lm ocoEmq8:oqre8t
qc8rn: 

"&E'E$E$a3E:<5lccE!u 
o{$odlsaq ogo@:oqpq$ o&E:oDqE$on*5b gE:qpo:

qc6rn: Pre-tax rate $Qo:$cfscoipt Sg?6dlareq, {{.oanEqdq$€ $Eo6lcmocnogl:sac:
Fi na nce cost o$6 cr1;ti,mq8:a38:6lccE!r

?-cer ConUngentLiabiliUes

ocfieri odpE:gp: o6Qo8g 8:qc6$EccpQ saoqoor flq$ ,occqp$E:r o.:oqqop$
ocJD(y)sn3 occqpgoodffiE$a obligation offiE: of.$6ooT6lm o?pocqscac$*o+E
gp:o6:q8u:qE:tlcg8:cts otrocz:E:oo:q$Eocm oo:q$mo$ (Contingent Liabititis) o$69o69
qEoo6S6lccpQr

contingent uabititity f$ Asset qp:srl:: oco8gE cr:omorqg8er5 c:poGq:sG$oo+E
q8:o6:qpq8 DqEsF# ooSm&Grfi,ih

r8
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$$ cn$ E e cn:qp: ocr5oB 8 oc6
..1oco qgEr oo8cu (pc) qo5oEc2$og:oca gEocacr5

o gpo EqE:o6: qp:o o<ngoS gqp:

?!or ooEcco5ooS6oSoon oloopQ:r g$pS

oo8cccrS oc8 gc:Se oosa $.oop!: r $f"S { -dp -

(cn ) of c,Sflc,5$Eo or caoSQc6$$6oo o:6p: (cpogo8 ; o6p:oc8Qo oosa $.9
(c) c8$:qlpgqp; oEp:o8oo>c6go8$:q1p$E: ({p"?o8l o}.sao$:g ?:Qo8$:qlp$E:

(d"g8So8cpgoSqp:rcoc6ognc8eqp:g$saeo$o7coc6ornc66qp:)

Q) @cog6:Q:ocmo$.sao$:o6[q8odp6m: g$ffi E''

(p) sa$.oopQ:ooTq8 ?3Qo8$sqpQEg$ffi8:r
(o) sap.saop!:copQ o76cfte59:Qo$.oop!:$Ep8:r

(o) op.saop!:ccp| oc6o6opEc$:$6p: o8:o7Ec$:efi oc8o6o8o:6p:$E$E:r

(rp ) sa$.oop!: ccpQ og6c $: (cpoqo8 ) 8oE c2gc8o\E6 o$.)gq E oScn-o$fl q $ESE:I
(c) sa$.oo2!:ccp! (m) {pu?o6 (<r:) qE qp!g$:o:ocr:8cm:g ({pu?o6l

oEp:p: g$q8:$: o o:8cr:goE$E$E:r

(o) o$.saopQ:and 4.6fl"8$6oorcac:SQc6$$Eoo (-) {p"td (") %E qpQg$:o:ooo
o8p;oEo<rncr5o5 o8$:q1pg (cp.ocpo6y @oqg6;Q:5qGcD ({.o<.:2o6; {o}.saop!:ca8
saoEmqdo<-,,Q8 g${la7ol @m g6:Q:,i,e1SE: r

' (o) sa$.oo2Q:cc$ o$o6:ooflFs{.9: mo$o6;ooEocrcr:ocoolocr5Q8: o$o6:qp;o5

saoflp8:go:saqcB 86cE$:ooEgc6c?$E$E: ({pu?oSl o76c$:qE:oc6o6qfioro

opQ copQop.sao$:o{$E6lop! rr

?!cr Fair value Measurement (a:Qo$ocnoq:g1$: ccoEgoE$E:)

Fair value {-dfo of E:mocl,c+.%E fl-d oqpqc6qE 6lo8a7qp:o@' qSS g0o6gsm:
oep8:qlgog8 qfloplt{.) oo:q$oo$-Ee cgo@E:epq8 o<.,:qog} oqpq$:$E6lccpln Fair

value cco69o6$E: Ef"t6ep! qQ8e$qp' oepE:q$E:pg oo:q$mo$qp' cgoSE:PE:4.-d
principle market ({") Advantages market 4."?E SEo6l'ccpQc:p qoqlc6oodlsao$6,$
qc,EqlcBdlccpQrr

qQE g$+0 o<.r:q$mo$sn: cc go go cmoqpg$: cco8go8spqE oqyo2c6$ dloEcTqp:cc$
o{dlqQfuQr oo:q$m"${.+Q oc6ccc8$ qE ofs5 odpE:go; oocm8:og: qflq$o"B"S
cco69o6co::or:> oq:q$:$Eop!c.,7ooo qoqcBEQ 4Ero-ocS$6lccpln

Fair value .roho6"pq8 s>o$sao60 {n6oqrdoq$6oc>r oqocmc8oen
o q1c6sa coc6 qfi $ 

E -d E 3! : cu6: qp:crf m cp: $pla:plrr

Jo



$$<n $E e cn: qp: ocr5oSSocB

,1oco 1g6roo8cu (pc) qc6og.c2$og:oc> g8oqc8

AgFo q'fl8'-6:qp:oo 6[9o5 gqp:

qi8g$qp'+$_ oo:q$mo$qp:ol 
lair _va]ue c{ qE:of.rn: o$$:,o69o6ooS$epqS

dcno8gp:El: ogpQ:q: input oodloo$.$ ca{pom:g$sao$c{ oo8$dlcopQ, - ' -

Recurrins 
lrsis E.E1r$,oq*E':1" qQE qp:oqc6 +Sq$"g,{$psa{pom:}Ss?sD: p$cop!o$:o6$E:$g sa n,cc8hcopQ,. 

'' I uru

9r significant Accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Eg$ f$ oo:q$mo$qp:r contigent Liabitities

oq8:Xdlsqp:oo: c$c8qcqQcg'spg ornc6o<s8$,i qf ${$qqp:of $pgSc5lopQr

g-cr lmpairment of Gedit Exposures

qc6 o$Q:o
Boo$!a?

o$.s$'rS
rnoiogpl:qp:et $$oep8:qop$ cac])s
saq;c6ococ6qp: oo6[qE
c6o@:$Earc$ o$$;oqpoffiqp

g1l Fair value measurement

Jl



$$cn$Eecn:qp:ocfi oBEocB

.pco lgEreo8cu (pc) qcfoqcp$og:ocn gEocacfi
o gpoepqE:o6:qp:sao <f go5 g qp:

Financial Asset f$ Liabilities qp: ca{pom:}S:cco69o6gq8 cocvS ? Active market

q8$Eo6l'opocr: price qprd qpQp3$:$c7:co66lcc$rr credit risk qp:c{or$; o$o.qF-{
o$caE:op:u:;6lcc$u
Active market ofl6lcn ogg:ooqgE.?$q$ q8flocm oq1:qcr5oo$saoEo6tXopQ$

saoep8:oooS$Eocn Arm's length transactions oryq$r discounted cash flow analysis +$ other

valuation techniques "?C sacA:Splccplrr g$af.rn:$Q oocrrl&g$og: Fair value sv)z

cco69o6 o9:$o66lccplrr

9-g QoccQ8ogpQ:qp:ra: o$Q:oqB[iE:

QoccQ8ogpQ:e5 sacq:o8ccc8o6:ooT?-d$ qp,n&Q+d: (Straisht-line basis) $Q o$Q:oqp
<5lcopQn QoccQ8ogpQ:qp:o5 ccc6o6:c{ S +fu fE o., oq8: cco69o6o:<5lcc$rr

pQ:ogcefi $.$pof:o:c6 oS8:etsgqp:o@$copl: sacT:o8ccc8o6:g$ residual value

qp:o$E:cts$E-{ op<5loEo$Q:oolTocnmcupQ: o$E:cts$Edlco$u oor5dgoccQ8ogpQ:qp:

or5cuc6cql$o 
$Q: qp:rn: 9o6 g (co ) qE o cE po: 6l ccEl rr

99 oEogg$qpo:$E:

ca9$omoScl)qpG3D o8ogg$qp:cc$ m1f:qc8q1c6o::ocn oEogg$qp,g$

.DQqfl"+$EdlccAlrr oocr5cc$ ogo6$$o:ocnoEogg$g,.,osqp'g$sad og"6q"6oo6$<lccpQr

oo8mEf:qcr5q;c6o:ocr og$g$opc8q::qc6qc6gsaq qfiocnsa g$4.o@' ngr$l't

fiocroSl g6oq8: tax provision cr? o8floE+E6lopQrr

g€r ogpDoepoqo8oca QE#gd crfqE:qc6E:g (Impairment on non-financial assets)

Q8{Eqo61ofi recoverable amount .l| sa{61 QE{Eqer: }ooa:o69o6@)sGcf,r
ogo@:q8oo8ocaolpEd on:o8o$$: (value-in-use)o6l'q8 oo$,5$ cco8go8ocasadl

E6o$.!a?o?.od ogo@ .t6oo8ccE! o7$qp:oS ogpg$:o:ocm oqcoo6ogo@:8:o8:qc{
o$.y$'t Ef"t6$Eq$+Q **, ogo@:8:eo8:9ori ogg$-$8,.,} cco69o6q$oqc6 cogoolpocn
discount rate cf ccoEfo66t+ cQo&lccpQu
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$$cn$E e cn :qp:oc6oBEoc6

..1<>co gqEr co6cu (pc) qc6oEc2$og:ooa g8ocac8
o gpo ep gp:o6:qp:oocT goS g<1p:

gr ofpDcqs#e 6?:S$Eo$c,? Eoo$.|$&

oor5qp:o1 8:go:oq{Eep oT8oo8qc6qp:q8 .D?FoGqs@qpmo6: oc7:$6qp: dlo8cc$rr *{61
q6oo8qc8qp'od o@:8og:,fl:$Eo$r $86$;ogcbogoStr$:sagg<.:Sr oof:tr$:opspus+Q
o g $6o9o5 9 sgg ep<.:Sd.cp"o cn o{p{po cD o gFD G T {E ep 

"Q'flr' 
$E.EQC SEo o<5lcc$rr

ocfiert o$pocq{Esp ni'6f$8"84..{ E6s?6qp9pcrr5oo3qp:ccg! 6lflc6ono}9 c$o6@r:GcD
o?6QEg$rrcrnsao38: 8ao$.!q1o5fi<5lccpQrr sa{61 E6E6qlpgocr:5oo3qp:cc$ Qoccq$:qp:
q19o6$E:r 8oE@E:gE o6[co8qp:q9o6$E:qp: q6oo8$E:rl::$$ g8:ofsl arcs{sep@'E6t
or,:c8q8 -{.51 "i'il'$E"E{.4 

o-$EdEE:9$ 86o$.}$E:qp: o76oo8o1c6{i6lcop!u 
"r{61ocrr5ooSg q;9o6o:ocm oEmc4lcc$ o6[c'c8o{Enp6+$ og:So6qo5qp:sn: BoD o}.g

SoEcq;co66h:pQn

ocrSooq$$ $Ecno8cmffi Eao$.lopcn oSmcrpp$ ogprooq{Eg 
"?'fl'$S"E{.{

o rnc6<5lo of E: q19o6o:61 ccpQ rr

g-cr sooftlS 
"gg;eus 

(Interest rate risk )

siof:tr$: %1TC,S {-dp oqpe6o5oq& oo}tr$:oS8'eD9o@$ oEcoo8q8
ogpoccp {Esp In stru ments qp:oS o go@:8:o8: g ooc6o.q$S$Sr.l| {{-d,
ocv5copQ coof:tr$: sagcpusq crrc'rGqo6pcEX ccoEgo6@r:GcD ({.) cco69o6oo::oc::
customer qp:ol oEogo{pom:qpssq cco69o6o:ecn saof:q$:qp: o@E:ctsg@:g

$6o6[cmo cm seof :tr$:o8og f $ -4'+$:o a7:otlo8qp:g a3$E$E<5lcop$rr

Jocor oo8c'c (?") qn8n+.fl oof:q$:cagfuSqlrr4 -"6? ogvrc6<5lo<rn:soof8:

sacqlp:qlpoEpo:<5lccpln cur:::copQ financiat instrument qp:ot oq;:tr$:p$cuEQa:o69o6ocn

o{1$g$oqocpcrSocr:sa{${.rS cm6pcrrco+$ saEqEScc$oq.ofS5 sadpccc8oepcr5ocm

q 6: 91o of : tr$: qp:c{o oE gg $:or:61 ccp! l

J?



cqo
oG)clq
c> -)
6) -)
or(.

))

Gq

o

?l
8
T
B̂

Lq1s
!2
Ro
b'5
E
g
F
b
aao
€I
s
s
o

ulFut
'J/FCdo

a!.o
b
o
E

QR. €aJ rrl
,d8
ldxJ prt
t..LA$r Hsi 7.iiE %
5(udE "8x.c FxboN3 ?c4C,#H 5
R-- .b a

$E T.:' o E)r (.//) O

rlCO.t o
I

I^lc
lca
l-)
la
I ct-l-)to
l-

u0

:E

q

o

=
3

ocD
c.l- q
O-fG)-o(}.
)) .83A€ -6)tl GCd

'1fr -9 J)o
ocF
D

ea :2,
X G(rD

,L@6
a

oC-b

s
=i

a

c)q-)
oq
G

6)aqq
oo
C>
(
().

Yoo
G,

(9

.FF

.FF
a5
hte
HH€,I

t-O rfrsT-
3$ eo
H€-O va-

ua- u/t-
cdo oo
SE

6_._. 3r

#?
RB8?UA- 'As-dc..o(l)
ii6tatl (9

oo-

C>q)
G
G

gc;
.*X

Bc4-
@

5
ou).
!9.
G

<t)?
<t)oc. ..
%q-
t.6 ru) oo x=6(9 5f"R iFooo

G) G.O? qq)
G) e) -)G )--)c co(o(9c-
(FG

o

6) c,o? qq)
6) -) -foo-o cF(o

GDO(FO

c"q
c.o
?c.c.
o

)
Y-)
C>)-)

'-) q
fc-q
c>
e)

G.)
o
G)
d

C9

'c-' q-
c.)o

cg-
o

'c9 q
C>
oq
C>

uA_
-D --xq @.Q "" x u).X FL@!,<l + --60

,f "H FF.#tte x 3 c.'r-G
-.8 9^**i*,;:
E'E {TT6?otooo-::c{J d-o o O G-O-

(,()5
oo-
o-

oc

"tt E€8oc
u& >iq4 ct

+.9
S o'e-

d({i)

.ii ffi
-Lry.
*+

.lo

€
8
ato(,e
q-
G)

d5
o. Ab(ox+.oo(6q-

G)

,is
Cb

rH(>D
5
o

({)
c' (E
Dd
EB

o-

di
6"ao
e
o

€r(a
o(€
4-
R6
o.ri
.+
cGo

oA
(,

o
CI-

?s
3

06
4-
CF

o
ol

€
8

o3
2t
n
s
h
C'

oQ
4)qlF

I
U'F
tiD



$$cn $S e cn: qp: ocfi oBEocB

.1<>co qqEr ooEco (pc) qc8oEq$q:ocn f8e%c6
o gpoq:qE:o6:qp:oo6[9o6 gqPt

oE'E sDAcPOS {{-df. customer ({.) m$'ocm'o7 
-oE"T"d'qP'? -qlpT1

""q$--.$,rp'"4 
p$cogQ1,.,'o-Sq$ clc8oec6$&o@$ -"fi? qfl*od t$q,"St

4"qa-4i, 
- 

-J.rpQ o{dl "@'E saggoSqp:sn: oEp:q18:gftoSqPTq

,"4g"?0.5:qp,sao6[ %S-"Soqeocmc6ooo oE'E ogepoScn$.-"Srqf+: q19o6$E:rca{61

-q..roaq"SqpssD' 1-0@d@:@6$E:qp; E1"?SS 8ao$.!SE:9$ o8$:q1p$E:qP;

pp6o16la:pQrr

<r:ggEoogE: oc6cc$ oqpog6q$:r cqlsGtsg6Pc:S cco69o63Goil?q9f0 G'E6q4.dloEoc::
Credit poticy rn:pS-Ea.dco$rr gaocil8,i,og$:qp, p$<u$a:oS9o6$E:qp: sa,loo!

$Eocno@'E+i a:QoofopQ.2 ccoEgoEo:ocr ccoEgo8qlc6qP:o5 o@E:ots$EcE4..{

.-"11Sg""Sq168ocn 8oE$E:q6c$:opccpl oE'E s2deP,rsg SEooTcm$Eocm nQ'ff'mq'{

oc69oc;$oS$Sn"q$gg 9$-$n.-og6ooEqln8qp'4 oeo8gc,5$Eooq$oqc6 q€a"S

<5lcc$rr

o?pDGqsec$ocq$9p:o6:q8 eo8pcm:ocr cD?poGq'{Sp QS{S9 o{1:sam:offiE:E{

*6i4'""aSL'n- oE'E sagepoSqp:cr| sao6l8ogpQ:qp'efi og$o$Q:$:c'f

-d"BS.0L'$E'"floD oEqEScc$n+.%E flo- ccc:SooEo$Q:qp:oo8

-"5?;5;,61 -pQn -qponq. {S 6p 8S {6 ?qEflo cn 
QE {E9qp:o5 o$$ q' cco69o6o:o rz>

oG'E ogepoSccpQ o {,il QE {Eqqp:cfi ccoSo oE o$Q:gQ pQfl ,ilo$ r

oo5gc{Eoo8o:ocn Financial assets qprte oc6coc6$ ogmc6<jlocr>t$Qoo6$o::c5lccglrr

oq:ogcoc8crll$

o$Q:cr1goffi E' g$ o q:o8 ccc6o6:oo.qp$E'

oq;:ogccc6o6:ocqp$E:cf .oo5o$$:elcqlocc:$E:
cE;S:Eo$8:cq$E:

qE:$:[iP$epp:x

Joco Joccl
(cRj6cc$:o6l8, (cq6cc$:o6l8:)

coo,oeJ.ge c09,Jco.ce

cl,o?cl.oo 9,99e'9J
clco.go cJo.oo

coo,?9o.cg cOg/o?o.oc

oQ,gog.oo 9Q,9eo.9Q

J99,"0o.r,J J.,,?,

*mggy.:S<rnqp'od o@:$segq<jSc,,fioo:o@$ qS'$'EP$?qP'%E o$a38:o:$E: ofl<5lll

cq:ogccc6o6: ocqEog$@E:oficcd.c$. o:$Q:ooqp.cq91 oficc$q8'$'Ep$gt mqpmco6:qp:q8

-Q,q 9o9o6ooo:;oo: ooqpmo:E:qp: <5loE<5lcc2!rr qE'{.to $$cl:$Ee%E credit rating

opQn'florr: ooql6oooE,qP: $E,!o$rr

JT



og:ocn fEsa%c6

B . 
p$ oqpogqp,ue{foaE Gqlsgcs@BGcD

: {.r oa$cudr 9E:of.oq:o,popp o:fiooo

{c'pc5la:Elrr

O?r Liquidity Risk and Cash Flow

Liquidity nisk {ccE}n ocr5q8cuc6So:ocn o6ogqp:g$ Gflsqictqp:ers ogoepc6G3DoT)cuMaturitv date qE ,E:oo:q$fi Financiar outitaiion qp,{ oo:q$oc6b$s-d Risko{psam:$EdlccpQrr

ooc6<51 Liquidity Risk of roD 9 g0Elo:,ecn Asset andLiquidity Management polk

coc6{E<p policy control i:<Jccplu <rc8: Framework o3E

monitorins or riquiditv earrv warnins indicators, cash ,,"* ,,3rf',:f::"#,J'i,Tr1lll, l,l;scenarios qPt$ 
^co1|ehen-sive 

$Eocn contingency funding ptan qlgos$E: ocrp$ poticies
qp:r5lo8<SlccpQrr {.safiE o"r5 

"rE! 
oc6{Eep tocat resutato

liability base sn:o8$:c36ccrr6ooq$ Casfr d liquidity assets
oof E:o:fi q$cf saSdtccElrr

commitments qpr{ ooc6
Reserye Requirement qp,{
premium (a?")pE{E Assets

l

..1G

$$ cn$ S e an :qp: ocr5o3Sorc6

f
I-

T

I

I

T

T

T



Joco ?lE' oo8cD (?c) qc6o+Sn$og:ocm gEoqc6
ogpo q:gp:o6:qp:oo6[go59qp:

osDc6dleoD: oplocrSer1 qy${ioqocn Non-derivative Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

qp:c{ undiscounted Uasic $$ ogoepcfcmcusac$c8 (contractual maturities) oo8po:6lccglr

oEgEoqE: oE$ocE coc6o6:ofi
ocqpog$ocm

(q6cc$:o6lE, (q6co$:o6l8C (q6ar$:o6lEC

..,;ocor coSoc ?cqo8cf .fi cDc8cq$mq8:

Non-derivative fi nancial assets

ogpQ ocr5co"6q$

oq:ogcoc6crll$*

qE:$:$pgep:
o$:qQfuQqP:

ggodl8: m$Q8eQq"
Non-derivative financial liabilities

o6ogmqE:

sa$:oo:q$cro$gp:

ggodl8: oo:q$cro$qp:

ocm:oEo g$EqoSq qooqlo5

( la q1. a g q :fi1:y1z:oS r$ a3: a:$.o11>a:: q1cr5 qpt e, do E dtr

3cr5q5rpc-piJoco) 
Gffie (?c-?!ocq) qcfio+.fl ege@:qoS?Faqr?o pp.G.1olo f0 ?o.gJ,/. EEE'

$$cn$Eeooo6ocrfocr5g (eg$@rq.6o?o8 - c<>/.,;ocq)$$ ccosgos@?sGcn ogo@:qoSq?l-{t'
.1o 

o/o oc6o crTS og$dl aneg n

grr Foreign ftchange Risk (FER)

rrn {oplgo $EeS:ogEO qQeg0roo:q$oo$qp,te Financial derivatives qp:o5 Foreign Exchange

rate sao@E:ooDqp:9 ccc6oepc6o@E:ets$Eo cn risk of {cQc5lccplr

ocr5efi Foreign Exchange Exposure qpt%E Trading ooToEocn (Non-Trading) Foreign Exchange

exposure qP,.rd 3sa:t$0 Investment qp:r Funding Activities qprte customer business qp:9
ogc6o oTcm$&$E<51 cc$ rr

9G,oog.Jg
oc,ocJ.o? e0,Qog.?g cc,c?o.ecl

gg,cQe.oo J,o(x).oo ??c.(x)
- g'c"G'??

??Gd&

(q6o$o<l&l

9G,oo0.Jg
coo,?9o.cg

0Q,9co.oo

JJo,c9?.?c - JJo,co?.?ccg,poG.pc - gc?.eo Jo,?(x).Jg

J?e,g?e.GJ - ec?.eo Jgo,gg?.Gcr

T

I
T

T

T

T

T

I
!
T

Jq



$$cn $E e cn: qp: oc"5o88oc6

.pco qg6rooEcu (pc) qc6oqq$ag:ocn g6saqcf
ogpoq: gp:o6:qp:oo 6[9o5 gqp:

or;:c6dl cr<rn:oE| oc6erl (pc-p-..1<>co) q8flocm Net Foreign Exchange position qprq
ocf{Eep oScnogo@:qp:$Eorz: MMK, usD, Euro, singapore Doilar ".rd4$0oo6po:<ilccp!rr

qq$QEa0qP'

og;Q ocn5co"Eq$

oqpogcoc6cql$

- o$Q:ccr4$E:

- o$Q:cr11SE:

qEe$:SpgeHp:

ggo<5lE: qq$Q8eQqp,

oo:q$mo$qp:

m6ogqp:

c$o\?Gt

99o618: ao:q$ono$qp:

Net open position

coq,G..1g.G9

clco.go

.1co,gGg.gg g,coq.qG

o,gJJ.ce

E+,Do?6 qoc$E oflcm "?E1 oohgo{crn ggor5l8:

(q6co$a6l8, (q6cr$.od8C (q6cr$odl8D (q6crg:odlEC (cq6crg:o6l8C

?c,oQo.cc c?,coc.clo oclc.oc JgJ.g? 9G,.r"0.J0

^ ie.G9- _ 
- coQ/6.
- 

Qco.go

- 
JJo/cg?.?c- o,9.l.l.cB

Sensitivity analystis of Foreign Exchange Risk

ognc6<jlocrr::o3E o8cnogo@:qp:$Eocn USD, Euro, SGD qpslqcrcrs functional currency d
$E$Eoq Ex rate oo@E:ootsqp:t0 oc6er5 Pre-tax profit 9c$c6dlo@E:ots$Eocy: Sensitiviry
ana lysis c,f oo6$o:<5lccpQl

I
I
I
I
I
I
T

Stengthened by l0%

Weakened by l0%,

g€r OperationalRisk

Operational nisk {cca!?o "r"E 
ert Business Activities qp$q ocr5goS$: potential Financial loss,

internal control, operational process qprtQ og6c$:q8: coEloo8g System ql.ogE:rn:1d,qn6
qp,G@. oc6 ert 8:go:oq:oordpSq (instabitity) ES$SGqjc,} {cQc5lr>ggl

o{dl operational Risk c{ 8ao$.3epoe8c?$oX$Sar$ Cost fQ cocrSoS Risk Appetite constraint
saqE: $EooT$E og! n is r co'{ r:- E E'ESq$ qda"SES,E6,5loplrr

S",eq"'?e ?,e"?.e

Jo



T

T

I
T

T

T

I
T

T

T

T

T

$$cn$E e cn: qp: ocr5oESoc8

..1oco lg8r ooEco (pc) qc8op.c2$og:ocn gEoqcf
o gn spqE:o6:qp:o o15[9o6 gqlrt

d""$-d: oc6ooE$Q o{d operational Risk oEpq:c{ entirely etiminate 
"?S$Sq$

$0$e-{ 6p$ri15lcu8: Risk of manage o$q-d cost ccp} potentiat benefit -.6q overweisht

S6$Eo@e:copQ: Ec:coElcocr5d,o:dopQrr {saqc6.@0 oo.6saoq$0 <rcE: Risk qp,f
oo6$Eccq ool2dlt oo$Eq$r Business continuity management, incident management oo+E$
ocfcuoS Invest og6cqp8: $66lccpQrr {.-ES coc6er5 Risk Strategy qj?oS
saocrrEoo$o<s6$&rnz stxG:rv)E:$Eooq$ Internal audit op.gcoE!: Risk Issue qp:sDs
o6oo:gppq6<5lccpQrr

g€, Legatand Compliance Risk

Legal Risk {-dp ocrSol ccc6{Eg 8:go:oq:o76c$:g:9 
"qdauS 

ooqpcu$cD osaoc6c5l tesat

conseq uences qp:$EooToq$E:c{ {cQc5lopll
(c) goo8:qflo- oqcrSocuoSqp: ooTocrnc8S8:r goos(cp.) @6psGq;$q og6:ooE$E$E:r

counterpafty o5o?6QfuQ oogocr>:c8p8:gQ counterpafi ertosdlo3,ngqE flSogocnQ.)
mqpo6pfiooplp1$E?f Q oo8cco6$ c,roccqpgqp:

(;) m9$om"sr{.1 $6$Eoq1fioon g<.ros(of.) @6p:Gq3 o<nc6qlcrsqqp: (oc6o6qmcac,E
mo$ooo:sa6o:ccn o76o8q1c6g$ Ed"?qp,Q gooo8gcqt "g$q$ e.l
gc:oso<ncr5q"6q$ QooE$Eocn og8ooEqlcr5qp:rilo8ccgln)

( p ) ooc'S oriQ E { E g0 qp s c{ crn q c.s q$ o qE! sa q1E : 
" Ed qE s'

(q) 
"?t=?@99:$6oo$E$E: (og6oo8q1n6qp, ({") oep,Deq ({.)
m$:opE:go:gqp:$6oo$Eocn o$:$6q6qp: dlo8<5lcoElrr )

(g) q:tipg ({") q$q$:o:qp: ({.) guosqp:erS oo8gn8qog8 o$E:o5gqp' ({.) o9o:qpqg
coo5{Eocn o$E:ctsgqp: qp:S'cm$E:

Compliance nisk {ccp}go cccr5{Eocv: Financial seruice industry saq8: Sgc$:o;ooo eoGsr
EE!'E,.rosg$ codes {"St q$ clc,SogcfSS:r oc.'Qc,5qc$SES,"{ {.qa-d,, *4,;t
ocfcr5qcao@$oc'5rn: sc'8ogo8floE$E$Esr public reprimands $Eoo$E$E:r opsc$, R.tirity --,
Enforced susp_ension $Eoo$E$E:r seop{:dl:cjlm og6c$:og6cr}sg$Ep$.4 q6cg6,g
pF?6$E cc$ gao8 ccc,So epc,5$Edlcc$r

Bank oo1$$ ooc6dl tegal 90 compliance risk qp:of internal/ external legal and compliance
advicers qp,E. oEoepcf goS6E8qlpoqdlccpQr

ocr5saoq$O E$-$E6oo6o<{cacr59 ogo6p$o:ooo qq$gsg$qp: o{pom,cco8go8$E,g0
oqpogog:$pg olpc@:qc6 oo oog$@,ql"6qp:c{c'pc61co1 <Jlcc$rr

ta



JOco ?16r rao8co (pc) qc6oqcp$og:ocm g6oqc6
o gpoep gp:o6:qp:oo6[9o5 gqp:

91 qE:$:ogrn: &5o$.dfl (Capital Management)

Ca activities sa::ooc6Qq$-oan6
qE : ocfiofirisk rnro{pElgoom,fi
q$

qE:$:e grm:ornc6<5loof E: o:fic5lcrplrr

qE:$:cg

sa$o6cocBcql$

q$tor

Joco Jocq
E$-q6 lG$-"ts

9J,oo9,g?o,o(x) 0J,(x)g,e?o,(xx)
J,Jcc,.1po,qgp ??J,?co,o0?

c0,goo,ceQ,cJJ cg,ccQ/cgJ/oclo

o69ryfutD 
'2" $$S: (pc-p1ocq) qc6opg5

{."@q A$@'q"S 1cG7.1ocq) sq
,s6E @)sG ocmcrSgpa{p oolo r tier f o{f gri

of .oc6ocr?pq$dlcc$rr

?o

I

I
I
I



Joco ?f& ooEco (pc) qc6oEc2$og:ocm gEoqc8
o gpo ep gp:o6:qp:oo6[go5 gqp:

Gr ogq$ocr5-nEq$

ogoo:cocrScq$

p$cn$Se ooo6 oo| coc6fi o g-nE.rl$
oS:oc6flog-nEql$

cp oqpogcoc6cq$

oc6gcoc6go96c$:

n?$o?o6o?6go76c$:

ccoSqQ.ooEoq:og6c$:

c2$oSosgo?8c$:

o$ooEgog6c$:
oocr5q6oq.og6c$:

Qc,Sdpoqoq6c$:
og:ppq:oq6c$:

*&'

ccl,cgc,Qog,gog g,G9c,<><>g,o-.1p

ca,oq?,e?q,(uJ e,coe/oQc/0oo
c?,oGg,gJcl,9Jg cc,?o?,9ce,ooQ

9G,oog,-.,;9o,gg; JG,J"g,JeQ,Jet

G$GtqP3

sagc:o<.:SolE

n?$a3usf1rno6oql:og

qEo$Soqpog

mqE:QogoEGql:ct

seG cc:o):sacoo6m:og6c $:qp: c qlsct

d:cc$.o@:og:qpo:q1c6

@)ap6c$:aspsaa:saaft$aq1:agcvcr5o11f e1p:goaw:c>Sc?saof 6:@6apJt

Joco

E$-q6

coo,ogo,Joo,0oo c<>9,<>G<>,gpo/o(x)

G..;,gpG,gca,g.1c gg,ogc,eoc,?Qg

c,qcle,gce,o()o c,gJQ,JQg,(x)o

o,9JJ,ceJ,goo G,?Q?,QCo,(x)o

c9,?9e,0g?,9ce J,go9,9Q?,GJe
oco,J?c,G<><l -

coo,?9orc9o,o9o c9e,o?o/ooe,(x)o

(eg,geJ,Gg,J) (cJ<>,<><><>,<x><>)

c"",J0J,09",coo o

po,.;qG,..;co,ogq Jg,J?C,o?J,9Qc
c,coc,qg.,;,*.1Go c,oGG,o9o,o<>q

c,ego,eeq,?T) c,opc,c.19,gG7

9cl,c(D,eeq,eg0 9(),999,c9?,cQc

??,Ggg,,?.U,g?? ;o,Gcg,9oc,<>g<>
o,G9g,-.pq,Gog co,goQ,Joo,oQg

Gp,oGc,-.,;qp,<Go 9g,JJg,gcC,c?c

e?,c9o,o(x) oo,Q0o,ooo
rrc,sBJ,Qg?,o89 J,o?o,eq?,9(x)

?c

!
I
I
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

I

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T



S$cn$Se cn:qp:ocfi oBSoc8

g<>co lgEr ooEco (pc) qc6oqq$ag:ocn 16oqc6
oogpoq:qp:o6:qp:oo6[9o6gqPt

@) a76c$:z:fipaa:saafcr5 a3:cc$.e@q:apa::q1c$qp:g,: ast:crScib:ofE: @6cc2Jt

T

T

T

_l

T

T

t
T

I
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

oc8gocc8gog8c$:

q$a3oS9q6c$:
oeoc6o76oq,o76c$t

or q8:$:fi6$ffip'

ii

J,og?,oeo ?,grsg,occl
rroc,goo,pgG coJ,Jo9,ggg

cc,JGe,cgo ca,c9G,gJg
a\eg,geJ,trgJ cJollry,999_

cr(x)or(x)o c,(x)o,ooo

ccl,g(x),(x)o,fi)o J9/0(x),(xx),ooo
o,JeJ,99J,c$)

?c,?oQ,g?Q,SJ ..,;.1,GG<>,gGg,G<>G

JOOr(X)Or(X)O Joorooo,o(x)
c?orooor(x)o c?o,ooo,ooo

9,?,9.rr,tae,9.J 9

..1oco qqEqS qS:$:$p6?Hp:f e oo8ccc6$ o$Q:oo1p.q19pp,flc5lrr

euoted ogoEocn mggpSonqp:rn: Available-for-sale "rEE 
arcSgo8ffi, 

- 
oq:c2c8cb%€i"=

*q.63e-o8qjr'4"?S rair vatul (Jero6go8$Eo.-o@0 qq8:o$Q:g o$$:oq3of +f"A$n"68
. dlccpQrr

g, oS:qQE80qp'

Quoted o<1o6ocm og5pSonqP:

oQ:qogofcBmqtpqp'

o 
Q 

:qo g of crSoccrS goEqp:

oqE:occo6ogqp:
Myanmar Payment Union

Credit Bureau

@pEoo:o{oE +Q@pE"tCoc-,'o gqP'

Business paftner qPt?qq$fl

GGp QofE'o$:$:oo2c8 deposit

qE:$:$69po6ioop:qq$fi
qq$fl oeoit note

p,qGo,p<l9,ooG

c-.1.1,<>9o,qGg

Gq,Gc19,c99

cr.1*.1o,g>crG9o

9,qc9,goG,<>..1P

cl?,?oQ,Jgc

c,39.1,o9G,gq..1

Jco4II),(xx)

?J

g,coG,q3g,99p G,.,19c,c9<>,.1g<>



c)
o

c>
o
o(9
-
o

qD
(F
-e)(,
o-
G)-:

(9
f
o-
G)t
H-)

o
cr-

.:
Pq

(9
q
(}'
q?
(>

(j
G)

-o
E)
Q)

a

G

&
6)
G

(F
o)
o

GD-
o
o

G
oa
G)
Go

c>

(>
(9

C>
e)
G)
G)

c!

8" & 6^'
Q trX(} --) 

-i-
-fr1 

Ic" ct- xe)i:-t-t- 5

Q)
Q)
(>
-(9
o
o

G) C>
- Gr-)q(9.
-) -)oc'(9- q)
(}. 6)oo

Q) (9 (9
6)(>Oqo-(9-
c,- o c-ooc-qlq G_

G CD Cl-c-G (>
(}-ol

(F Q)
e)-
6)Oc- (9d6)

(9 (9
fo

o-q
G)
(.F-

?
G
G)

-o
O- Cr)
f(9lc-(}-o
G)OOGf

u4-tr+{ 'r'F & gfa6. F9.o .X

3+B+ 3gs+*

f,iae raia* t t

3qa
0(}. (]D 9)lv

&.8, aq?x
c"G):
{,s uGDf

6)-)
?(>
(>q

(9
Cl-

o-oG(9cJq
G --)

CI- OdGe) 6)o

G
Cr)-o
c_)
C.(Fe
fo

I

C>?o
o
R

CI-
C!
<>

(F
R

ts
GD
(>
Cr)o-
o

Cr)

o)

=x
(>
o

e.)o
d)
a
a(9
ao-

Cr-

a
GD(F

o(9

G)

(9

o

o(>
--)

c"
-)
o(9

(>
o
G)

-)
q
-q
c"
o-
o

o
G)
o
o
-?

G)Oa\oG9?oo\P) lvGD G .-.
G().XJ(> C)- Pdi^--{&g
o

e)o I-) c!-

dG(9C)6?q
G) C'GD -)

(9 Gr)qk
o6)(9 C-qq
o(9--) (.r.'

G)

ooo cr-GD G)
o-o
qe:
o-oo?qc"o€

6
F'(oq-
s
o
o.ri

.4-

e
o

oA
!4It
o
C>

?
€
3

(€
a-
CF

R5

(9-
o
o

--) (9c- o-(9-e
Q)OCt- C-?q
G-)GG)q-(9
o

CDc.
qJ
(}--)

c9
o
o

G Gr-)o6)
Qq)
6) (9G --)
o (.r-
dct
O-f

e) 6)e)oG- O-

G' (>o-oo- CJ
c).. (9fo(9 C>

c> (}.GGqq)c'-O-Gq(9-
CL C-(9 (Fc>o

O- c!-)

6) (9(O-
C!- O
GQ)G)G

C!- G(9G
Ct- C-
cDocDl
G) C9

o-

u^- w *i
f .,a- f F$? .F F #E
3+s+ 3gB+ 4

#ia3a,afiffi 
ililHl7 E 15 A-"ti-,1

tr f +,& sT]

(9
Q)
o
Q)-
G
Cr)
(>
o

-)
Cr-
e_)

ED
(>
G
C!-

c.
o
ct-

(9
--)
C>
C>
-)

(9
oc.

CO

q
-)
--)
o

Cr)
-)
oc.
o

(9
G

(F
c"

@

GD
CD

C96)
o

o

c- e)
G) (}-c-o
e))GD -)cI- G)
e)G(> Cr-(9-k
O C!-o

G)a b)
)

\J
x* (FX. (>

rn' 9\

-o. c9tvv

(> GD(F 6)c>G
ooGO(F-
o) G)(}' Cl--)o

"iu6d.il
ol

o -G)(> G) ')C-G)G
(}.G Q)CFG(}.CDOC9
o (.r. GD6)<9 c)ct- Gr)
o

e)c-oG)G)AqG.q
c-(>(c-o e)?qo-
G G)O)c--)
Q) --)

GOG) G>G-q
GD (>ct- cr-?EJGC-(9c)
G) C>

oo-(.}- o-o6)
G) -)GG(9-?
(>)ocF
a(9-
GO

Ttgl
H lrg

*t*l
"?ilstoal

EI

gE
or s?

E
o'r*tatu&t

4ir Ysfi+;TF
=C-5)

€
6"
la
tr)

%
a

€.$

'3 
FFt 
".$868

rt"r
h%V
AiE
t_g =i I

I
-I
I
I
I
I
T

t
I
I
I
I
I
!



$$cn$Eecm:qp:oc'5o3Eoc8
.1oco EgEr oo8co (pc) qc6oEq${:ocm $oqc$
ogpoo spq8:o6:qp:ooi[ gdqqpt

co oEoq.crf EqoS$cqocno g$:

JocQ

lG$-"x6
Joco

E$-q6
gsp:o$$:
opoc (c) qn8"+.fl mq8:g$c,rc8cq1$

gEseqE:o6of:$E:
oo8co (qc )qc8oE"fl mq8:8o6co"6q$

99o618: o$$:oqp
o$cu (c) qn6o+.fl oqE:g$c'ccr5c41$

gEsaq8:o$Q'o"lt.
ooEco (pc )qe8oqfl mq8:8o6cu"6"4$

mqE:BoE ocm:oEo$$:

oqE:9psa6og

oggmq8:sa8og

o{$QE:o6og
ArM mq8:9po6og
Citizen Card mq8:gl8o8og

ooTopo8og

cog,..;9c,Gpp og,oclg,o?o

cJcl,c?g,GJc cog,cGg,clgg

?cG,?clG,Jg9 coe,Jgc,G??

cl?,9oc,Jge

clg,JJJ,c?? Q?,96)c,J9e
cgo,Qo?,?oJ cl?,goc,Jgg

"G,l,G,U,o,?J ""g,,?G,r,?"g

.1p,9p.1,Gcc1,.1c1o Jo,oJc,coe,Qcc
G9,qcA,qG9,o9q Gg,Gqp,g..p,..1o..1

ccJ,ggg,J)e,(xx) G;,G9;,G9G,<><><>

c,occl,oge,qoJ c,JJo,???,G?e

?J?,cJ?,o9? ?og,9gc/coc
ccl,?co,cl?e,JJ? c?,?<>J,oGo,oQg

JJ),cg?,?o?,cQg cGp,gGg,gGp,G<>o

JocQ

lG$-"lE
Joco

E$-q6

T

T

!
!
T

T

T

T

!

?9



Joco ?l& oo8cu (pc) qc6og.q$g:ocn gEoqc6
ogpooqqE:co6:qp:oodgdqqp,

cqrr o$rtoo:q$olo$qp:

scoSGq] o6$ogqp:
Refinance loan

ogoo:o8$.

$$qE:ogcS
o<-,:q$fiqp:

o crE:{$E:oSp cc:oo: oo:q$flqp;

o$o6:q$Qog

oEogg$qpo:qc6
ocxq$fl Debit Note

c9r ogo6ooo<rcg8:[i:q8:$:og

80$Po:$qE'$'og
seggy.:SonoEqqE cq16g,<xn $$

ogo6oooo:a3E:$:qE:$:og

saggpSonoEg"l8 cqlEg,ooo $0

cCr q$?ct

m qE: g $co c6cr11$ ( c - 
9 

-..1< > c q )

;Esaq8: o66oqpo:91

?c-?!oco oificu&q$

eaq8r gQcocrScq$ ( c -9 -..1< > cG ;

aoqE:pf$pnq1c6

gEsacaE; co8coqpco:r9.

?c-?!occl Gf.fi cortrcr{$

Jo,il)o,Jec,oclg cg,Gcc2,g99,gp..1

c,g<>c,G.p,<lGp

o,9JJ,cgJ,90o

geo,oclc,?cJ

GJ,g.lg,.urg

c1,96)?,e99,ce9

clJ,Jco,?go

ec?,eqo,eoc
qoG,q.P,c<>q

oo,pGc,G<>9

JocQ

lG$-o{6

g,opG,qgg,gGp

G,?Q?,Qgo,(x)o

OJG,gEO,OQJ
c?Q,??c,990

g,o?9,Ggo,JQc

oc/Qcg/oJ?

G9,1,.,17c,PG9

c,gog,g?Q,Qo?

Joco
E$-q6

EISon ooqo%c8

Joco Joccl

ocncn(eq6)

J)co JosQ

cgr(xx)r(xx) c0,oooro(x) cl9,(x)or(x)o,(x)o Q9,ooo/ooo/ooo

co,9<x>6oG c<>,9<><>,goG gJ,(x)g€?o,(x)o gJ,(x)9,g?o,ooo

goosftr$: aryogoqc6 oocpooTcEgqp: 
99o<!E:ocogoqd:co$. sGoBcoB oqc6 :'..;:

q$?ott"' qpo:q$gog ut 
"B:cc$.q$(lcg 

"FY"E

E$-qE E$-"TS E$-q6 E$-q6

g,qoo,Ggg,<xx> p,cgG,qG<>,..;qo cJ,o(x),(x)o o,eeQ,9ce,JQo

qgJ,o9J,ggg gQo,J<>;,Gcx> - c,pGp,o9g,o99

G,goc,goc,999 p,qGG,gG..;,oqo cJ,ofi),(x)o co,pG<1,9G9,p.1..;

g,?JJ,ogc,g(x) J,?og,gccl,clclo og,coJ,oeo G,qcp,ggc,pqG

- (qg,co.1,<>go) (q9,co..1,<>go)

c,9Gg,o<>q,gcx> oec,J9J,g(x) J,(x)o,ooo J,?ge,ogo,(xx)
g,c1oo,fug,oo<> p,cgG,qGo4qo cJ,ofi),(xx) o,eeQ,gce,Jclo

l
T-

T

I
I
I
I
r



t"'E$-$Feogoqrolq-soEgoo:g8o 
?g (?) t!=rd oSc6gfupSS: saca:o8o$o6d ..po/orn: goossEc$:

moogoogd:o$. q$?og-EE cB:cc$.ooSo:$ ogcn;Sgo$oS*,ggoo$e,c4"SfogSq6trr
u'} 

E$cn$pdoo:6o<rlooo5 eB$@:qc6sE?o6 o +$od 4,ogco;"T$rs'Jt; rn:o@:q:qpo;q$9og
m$Ec3' cc $soSo:: fl 6lcopQ rr

cGr oof:o8og

Joccl

E$-q6
Joco

E$-q6

oq:ogqp:goof:
sagc:oc$oq6gsa4t

q$"guh-o5oq;og9 of:
q8o$,$eq:ot?s{t
sD G crsq)ssDoco6o:o76c 

$ 
:qp: o qpo g 9 

oof :

qE:g:gprpxo{:
ggo6lE:oof:

g8:cu8:qc6r moftg1$:

Gqlsctqp:?sE4'+t$'

sa6$o ggsaof :qo g (o$:ocn5)
oq8:o oo6o gsaof :g$:qps?o -

o6co
.?r-
o$c6n>

4'-
o6q6

ccp ooloQo8

o g gmq8:sa8o 6 sao oTsaop:o{c8

o{$Q&o6og saooTsaof :o{c6
o 5[<:.po6o g sao oTsao]:o {c6
ATM mq8:g18sa6o g sao oTsaof :o{o6
o$co6:q$Qog sa{:o{c6

g,gcc,cleg,cGc g,G?g,oc9,9Jg

_ J?,c99,9oe,co0 Jo/eoo/?oJ,ogQ

cc,Gcp,gog,qcg

G,?eg,.-Fo,,?fu

JJg,.gg,,rcu
?Q?,ggo,?qJ

..,;9,Gc..1,c9c

e.(nY,

G.Jgo/o

G.$>o/o

0'Q9o/o
co.<nolo

cc/go0,QJo,cgo

9/09o/JoQ,o0o
cG9,9g..1,<>G<>

cJcl/o0g,0oJ

cJ.ooTo

o.<t<>70

e.oo%

0.Jgo/o

e.go%

G.Qgo/o

c<>.<t<>%o

c.1.<x>o/o

o.o<>o/o

Joccl

E$-"16
J)co

E$-q6

g,Qp..;,cGo,oqq 9,,,G",J9J,Q9J
orfi)o,gcgrcoc g,p<>p,.1<x>,qqG

c,o09,oJ9,9J9 c,ccQ,?Jo,?ocl

?g,goq,ggo Jc,Gqg,?ge
9o,9cQ,JJ? ?g,cg?,990

c?,e??,gcJ,Jgg cc,

gG

$$cn$ E e cm:qp: ocr5o38oc6

T

!
!
T

T

T

!
!



$$cn$E e cn:qp:ocrSo3Eoc6

..,;oco ggEr co6cu (pc) qo5oEcp$og:ocm g8oqc$
ogpac ggp:o16:qp:modpSqqpt

gp:co8:q1c8l

oggmq8:sa8ogol oof:g$:go coo$:(g)qoSt om?$n?,{$oq& olpQ:oq:coc6cql$egsaooTq8
(o..1go/o) $Eco2Ql
mq8:o ccsr8o gsaoft g 

1$ 
sqps?D -

oEctc

"?r-
oScBco

{'-
o6gE

g.<x>o/o

e.J9%
g.Ggv"

e.eo%
co.cgo/o

E.rrrro/o

e.Jg%

e ,goo/o

G.Qco/o

c<>.<><>%o

odlqsa8ogor5oo]:g$:9o oq.opsaq$:oq: ogc'cc6q1$sao6l'q8 (9%)E6ccdn o5[opsa6ogai
saop:gt$;of of:$$ccpQsaoE$g oE.opoqpQ:q: ogcuc8cr4$a:pl q16 (co)cc$:oc8Q<5lm

ooftg$: (oolo)S$ (pc-c<>-.1<>cQ) ooScug!:ocrz:E:r G,C.Z, E0 (';-c-.1<>co)qc6 saoS c,c$:ocm8:
oo:)dccpQrr (-.1-c-.,1<>co1 qn6o+.? o$ opQccp$ c:cncnoogc8 o{ oof:q$:go oE.opoqp!,og:
o gcoc6cr4$saooTq8 (9,/") 

SE<51 
ccglrr

cor s)cD:o)E ocrfoqEo8o g+0 o$:ooo@Gtqps

JocQ

lE$-qE
Joco

E$-qr6
ocrf oq8o8ogf $ oS:ooo@ogqp:
ocrrSogp qctqps
o$ooEoqogqp,
663 gocr:Sol8qogqp:

mEg$ocr5o6 o8ogqp:

o$:ooo@sGtqps

ocrr5oq8gQ o$:o81o6qp:

oorSocrr5o gE g€ o$o oE oo{o6qp:

m8g$oc6o6 o{o8qp:

saS:otloEqp;

J,Oog,goq,GW J,?oe,q9?,?cc
c,ogp,9pG,gpg c,J?o,cl?J,JGe

&JC,9m
po,cGp,ogg

cg,?Jog<xr ?,oGg,g<xr

?,c1J9,9?cl,99J p,G.19,opg,gog

??,c?o,oeo ??,?0q,99?
cao,eog,Joo ceo,qoe,GJg

oocrG<x>

coJ,o?G,eo? J?J,cgQ,gco
g,Sg",qr,r,9$ ?,?ec,oeJ,gh

?q

I

I

n

l



$ $cn$E 0 cm : qp : cocfi oBEocB

;<>co qg6r co8cu (pc) qc8oEc2$og:ocn gEoqc8
ogpooqqE:o6:qp:oot5[go5qqpt

cgr o@r>Eog

$pe$:o 9o@:og6o oE qlc8qp:oooT ca$o6

ooogoog<lEog

o q:o gsaooTc3:o$.qpo:q1c6 oopqpQ:91

sa$o6o<>g<>Eog

.1or o$o6:oepepoSldqp:

comg$q6oqp: ($E6cm:)

c'cmgQog6oqp: ($E6S:cn:)
6l(ic6oq,$Qog
.,?gio?oq'-do8ot
o$:o$o6:ocr5o6oQo6

-1u 86o$.!99$ cooogoogoSioEqp:

{poc7:soooEqp:
oqorE:oqp:

cooSqQs m8otio8q$ Q:o{o8qp:
og$ooqp:

PsOqP:
sacoSo@:

o755l$'og+Q opQ,5ot1c5

o@So{o6
e?GOcc+f $08.o.t,
ccEo$:ot1o8

goEQoEqQ cSoE

9J9,9J?,?9c c,(U9,oeg,(UJ

",oco Joccl

E$-qr6 l6$-q6

p,gpc,Gpcppg J,clgg,Jog,Joc
c,?cJ,9oo,eqq c,cgp,gc.1,<ryG

g?,ggo,oil) pg,Ggo,<xx>

Jp,oGg,gQ? cq<>,oGo,cG<>

9ee,9?c,9J9 9g?,o9J,cn)
g,gGq,oclg,oco 9,G<>c,qgp,geq

Joccl
lG$-q6

Joco
E$-qs

;<>q,coG,opg
cgp,oqg,gGo

J9,9ocl,?9o

9O,(XX)

qOJ,?JQ,9?C

.,;9c,G9c1,9op

cJor(xx)

I
JocQ

lG$-q6
Joco

E$-qs

cc<>r<>cGr..,;qg

gc?,gcg,?Jcl

pgg,GoG,oqq

clQ,999,clo$

qGp,qq;,o..1c

go,ogg,gclc

cGg,..pg,cg<>

gg,pgo,oGc

Jo,oeq,9JJ

9,9oc,(xx)

..1Go,G9g,gcA

Qo,eo0/Jcg

Jcc,cJQ,99J

JJo,9J9/ooJ

Jo,Qeg,of)9

..1<>G,cp9,ggo

Jg,qoe,Q?G
cc9,<>pG,9qq

Q,J?C,??O
cG,ogp,9c9

cgg,qoG,gq-.1

?o



$$cn$Eecn:qp:ocr5o3Eoc8
.;oco lgEreo5co (pc) qc6oqg${:ocn gEoqc8
ogpoo epSp:or6:qp:ood[ g"Sqqpt

..1..p 
o8o6$coc7:o{o8

oct5ccpQ or?crrcDs)qo5 o8og g$oanSqn8epq8 q6<-,o8cu$oEogo<5[o38 ccc6{Eep o g$g1$:o:

mof E:qc8qc8o:dlop$rroEogg$qc8qn8g1pornc66loof E:$E6lccpQrr

og$ory68 oEoD ?€go,oeq,ooJ c1,ocq,Gpo,oc19

a3:cc$.opo'qcEooppQ'?ts%o8 mq8:pfl$p:q1c6 (.p,9oq,p9o)

Professional fees

pEoEoS$:c86;o{o6

op::sac7:o{o6qp,

$86@:o gotsofSqyo,itt'/(sEoB)

o$o6o<>9o8og

<>Eo g g$o<-r:oo8qo$o8og
o gq6saqc6 o8o g g$op@s?[

oggroqpEmqE: ocfi6mm8qr,{. }oooo:$pocn
sacD:o8 se$oE 1crl6;

cmcooo38: c16:gcncn$samfs- seoqseqcrS

oggpS<rnoEgerSooSSo8o g (cr116)

ccG,goq,qog ?o,Jclo,Q(x)
pgG,Gqp,cG.1 cGg,Gg.1,oc..,;

cJo,cloc,JJ9 Jocl,ogcl,Jcc
gg,GoJ,ogc (Goc,9<>G,Jeg)

J,eJ9,??",""e g(ffi

(go,<xn) (c.1<>,<xx>)

?,e??,G9o,9?9 cl,occl,gco,oQg

.?"C,,?Jr,crr,? c,et

JocQ

l4$-q6
Joco

E$-q6

.;pr og5y:&uo6gd o8og

(m) oggy:SonoEgd oo$5oEog
sao$Scr4ocnoggoS<rn oEgoso8ogcrf o?F)oGqscrrctrcao38: q6cr3o5ogqEqp,"Q.

|ooooa$pocn o$oErn:q&cmcuoq8:<16:g cmcn$og5pSon ooqoqc8$$ -€ra"Aqc6
o:r5lccpQrr

JocQ

E$-qE
Joco

E$-q6

?e

l
I

I
I
t
t
I
t
t
I
I
I
I
t
t
I



$ $cn $ 
E e cn : qp: ocr5oE E oc6

..1oco EgEr ooEco (pc) qc6oEc2$o9:ocn gEoqc8
ogpooepgp:o6:qp:saodgo5qqrt

(o) o.,il+d: goSflo cn og5y:S<rnoEgo5o8og

ogp,oq:;EoqE: cocfi elSseqq8qp,{. }ooo<.r: $P.-
sacn:oEsa$"6 f"AEl

cmcosaog8: c16:qcmcn$m?fl,rs<.r.l saoqoqcf

oq2EpQ:goSfloco mo@E:

crncosaog E: $ $p:$: q6 : fl cn cn $m g 91oS 
crn se o qrr qcrS

oqppQ:goSflocn saggpScv:coEgofi o8og (q16)

.pr o$o8oog

oooop:-

..1<>cc2r 
oo8c'c (pc)qc8q$og:ocr q8oqc6

saggpScr>o6gcop G'/. E$ sa$oEoog

;<>cGr oo8co (pc)qeEcp$ og:ocn l8oqe8
segq<.Soro:6fq8 cpo/o $. sa$o6oo9

.,1<>cgr 
oo6c'c (pc)qc8cp$o9:ooo gEsaqcr5

saggy:ScmoEgc.l8 cp"/. $$ sapo8oog

co,goo€oG c<>,g<xl,eoG

?,,g gG"

?,coe,eeq,9oo

cerooJro?cl 7,<>c-1,goc2,G;c

coQ,?oo/cQg

JocQ

lG$-qE
Joco

E$-"T6

p,cclc,pGg,qqg

co,9<>o,goG

9/o??/coc,ooQ

c<>,9<>O,goG

Joco
E$-q6

.-od cc8:ogecgo8 saopQrooorog8 ;<>colgE oo8co (pc)qc6og.q$og:oo:qEsa%"E

saggloScmsapo8oog oEgoTE go/o $Q9yrSono6l8, c<>,g<>o,goG snz crl6 J,ooo,ceQ,Joo
ocxq$sacQ.gc saggy.:S<ugpqp'e,l g$P1q"6q"?q$ -{Ef"d$66lccpQrr ogpooq:9p:o:6:q8 sa{d
sa$o8oogrnr @dc88:ooo8po:6lrr sag9y.:So>gpqp:m oo$pplm ;ocglqE
oo6cu(pc)qo5oE.c2$q:o$+EogE sa$o6oogloop8:m$E equity q8ocs6po$$E6lcc$rr

9o

I

I

I

I
t
I
I
I
I
I



J)co
E$-q6

I
t
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I

I
t
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

S$cn$Eecn:qp:ocr5o38oc8
.1oco 1g& eoEco (pc) qcr5og.c2$og:oco g6oqc6
ogpooq gp:o:6:qp:oodgdqqp,

Jgr oo8ccc6oc6goSopocn olgaopQ:qp:d cuo8o?$mq8tpE q6c$:oo8gc6qcr5qp:

oo8ccoSoo5goSoEocn oloo$:qp:erS coc8ql$mq8:g8 q6c$:oo8gc6qc6qprq{roa8
saoq<5loc:: 8ao$"!c,7qp:r oc6o6ogocm sa$.saopQ:qp: dlo8dlccpQrr saoq:<5locm Eao$.!a7qp:9o
ocu5o56lfic6@)qPs ocfiq8 o$p8orecn Management Executive Committee oEqpqQ
ocr5oepo6:qp:6lo8 rilccpQr oer5crE!98:erS <-,cr5cccrSocfgoSocaop.oopQ,qprg$ osnc8<il
o96o oE q1c6qp:pp76|6lccpQr

(m) saoep8:saooSog8o o8qlc6qp:
- dlfrS-qp: ooflp8:go:fiopocn op.mopQ:qp:af. 9c:q6:oGosct- oggy:S<rnq8qpr{. 9c:q6:ooo:og

(o) coc6cql$mq8:

- 61fln6-qp: sadpS:go:fio gocm o$.saop!:qp:cf . @p8o<.r:9c:q8:o
, - oggy.$<rngpqp'{.@p8o<.r:9c:q6:o

- dlflc6mqp; saoflpEego:flogocm op.oogQ:qp:g sa6ogqp:
- sgffSoDflEqp'? o6ogqp:

(o ) oo q:6lo cm E6o$.!a7qp'eri coofl pSm: g0
- comg$ o81o6

- :5lftc6mqpssD: q,E€og

9q9,JC?,?JO
o,ogg,o(x)

go?,coo,?Jo

Jo,ogo,oog/ego

Q,9<>9,QJc,Go?

Pg,9Gp,G<>c2,Gpc

c,o<>p,c2go,GgG

0?,99(),(xx)
c,ogcl,ceo,GgG

9)



$$cn$ E e cm : qp: cocr5oBEocB

.1<>co lg8roo6cu (pc) qc6oqc2$o9:oen gEoqc8
ogpoospgp:o:6:qp:oodgo5qqpt

..1Gr Guarantees and C.ommitments

(m)Bank Guarantee

JocQ

lE$-"lE

J()co

E$-q6

rn.rn$E:( Guarantees ) qp:ccp! $6q6o6p@$ ""sE@)sGcD 
qgsg€ g$ o.:q$oo$qp,

o@E:ots$E:so%n6 ocr59c$sa6ocm oo:oq191$p26q$oqc8 qp{o:ocn -qpqp,f
{cQc5la:plrr Guarantee qps",,*Dcogcog coosqpq8 contra q6E$ mq8:q8:[i:
ogpo+6q$og:ocno1$ ccc6o6:c2$q:S8:ofiocc;ocm mqpqp:$EccpQr

(o) Commitments

E$-"468$ sa:c5o:;$E:

$EeS:ogp$ eaoo6o:SE:

ogo8o;$E:of'1o o:o cn oq8:Qogo8GqlsGt

Co-Banking software

J,0?q,eog,Ge9 G,.1co,cqG,..1<>c

?,J()9,(xn,(xp J/clJJ/ece,g?J
g,,?9.,g,r9,Ge9 t,

JocQ

lq-$-q6
J()co

E$-q6

c,cg9,oog,ecq .1,cao,G9<1,pp9
c,g?cl,eG<>,cccl

J

9J



Registration Number : 27 4 I 1991-1992

Myanmar Citrzens Bank Limited
Audited Financial Statements

31 March 2018

\\ I\ THN & ASSOCIATES
.: :. . .:..D PLBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



MYANMAR CITIZENS BANK LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

CONTENTS

Directors' Statement

Independent Auditor's Report

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Changes in Equrty

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Page

t-2

3-4

5

6

7

8

9-3s



Flyann:ar Citizens Eank

$ +951 255 883,2s5 885

Q into@mco.com.mm

t$ lvww.mcb.com.mm

MYANMAR CITIZENS BANK LIMITED
Directors' Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2018

The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited financial statements for
the financial year ended 3l March 2018.

In the opinion of the directors,

The financial statements are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position oi rhe
Bank as at March 31,2018, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equit-r an,l ;a.h
flows of the Bank for the financial year covered by the financial statements;-and at the date of thrs
statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Bank will be able to pay its debts as and
when they fall due.

Directors

The patron of the Bank is Dr. Than Myint, the Union Minister of the Ministry of Commerce.

The board of directors of the Bank at the date of this statement is as follows

No Name position
1 U Toe Aung Myint Chairman
2 U Soe Naing @ U Ko Ko Gyi Director
3 U Hla Oo Director
4 U Tun Lrvin Director
5 U Orvn Saing Director
6 U Hla N{au Oo Director
7 Dau'\{oe \Ioe Director
8 Dau Are Sadarluin Director
9 U Aunq -Lune Director
10 U Zar aThura \lon Director
1 I U -\r e Thal Independent Director

The board of director has app.'inted Dr Thaung Han as Chief Executive officer of the Bank.

Arrangements to enable directon to acquire shares and debentures

Neither at the end .-i:.:;:: 1-i :::e during the financial year was the Bank a party to anyarrangement$hosecb':::',":>:- =...:.::hedirectrrsoftheBanLtoacquirebenefitsbymeansofthe
acquisition of shares i:. - - :=:.:-:----. ::. :re Bank or any other body corporate.

Myanmar CitizerrsBlt tle x r 2f,L Sty'e -"*J" Road. Kyauktada Township, Yangon, Myanmar.



Share options

No options were -qranted durin,q the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Bank.

No shares were issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up

unissued shares of the Bank

There were no unissued shares of the Bank under option at the end of the financial year.

Independent auditor

The independent auditor, Win Thin & Associates, has expressed its willingness to accept

reappointment.

On behalf of the directors,

1 /-"/
I

U Aung Aun U Tun L rnDr. Daw

(Chief Executive Officer) (Deputy Managing Director) (Director) (Director)
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Ref: 296llVI-249 I Nfl{.arch 20 I 8

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RBPORT

To the Members of Myanmar Citizens Bank Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Myanmar Citizens Bank Limited (the Bank),

which comprise the statement of financial position of the Bank as at March 31,2018, the statements of
comprehensive income, changes inequity and cash flows of the Bank for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the X'inancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS) as rnodified by Central Bank of
Myanmar Guidelines and in compliance with the requirements of the Myanmar Companies Act. This

responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted

our audit in accordance with Myanmar Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatenrent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that sive a true and fair viewing order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Bank's internal Ctrnlrol, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the :::..-nableness of accounting estimates made by the managernent, as well
as evaluating the or erall pres::.::: --:. ..: ::,: tlnancial statements.

Webelievethatthe audi::..t='-= . =:i.: -'L,tained is sufficientandappropriatetoprovideabasisforour
audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Myanmar Citizens Bank Limited as of March 31,2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with MFRS as modified by Central Bank of Myanmar Guidelines
and the provisions of the Myanmar Companies Act.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the provisions of Myanmar Companies Act, we report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and
(ii) books of account have been maintained by the Bank as required by Section 130 of the Act.

Also, in accordance with Section 89 of the Financial Institutions of Myanmar Law, we repoft that subject

to our management letter, in our opinion, the financial statements are complete and properll and fairll
drawn up, they present fairly the operations of the Bank and the information obtained from the officers and

representatives of the Bank are satisfactory.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended March 31,2017 were audited by another auditr-.r

who expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements on June 9,2017.

Moe Kyaw (PA 313)

Managing Partner

Win Thin & Associates

Certified Public Accountants

Jlurlre24,2018
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MYANMAR CITIZENS BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FNi.A,NCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 31,2018

Assets

Cash in hand and at bank

Loans and advances

Investments

Other assets

Properly and equipment

Intangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits from customers

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

Total liabilities and equitY

2018

MMK

46,085248,952

188,252,548,188

57,510,879,412

5,186,329,443

12,947,281,298

167,672,872

2017

MMK

26,214,297,298

159,718,009,008

47,491,569,606

6,24r,140,290

10,261,130,085

115,760,384

Note

6

1

8

9

10

11

310,149,960,165 250,041,906,671

12

13

220,r53,303,175

20,300,291,075

163,969,969.608

1,9,611,544.932

240,453,594,250 183,587,5 14,540

l4

15

52,004,930,000

5,119,732,800

10,360,464,322

2,211,238,793

52,004,930,000

5,119,732,800

8,997,419,278

332,31.0,053

69,696,365,915 66,454,392,131

310,149,960,165 250,041,906,677

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory inforrnationform an integral part of the

financial statements.

Daw Swe Swe Myint
(Deputy Managing Director)

U Aung

Authenticated

DrIThaung Han

(Chief Executir e Ottlcer) (Director) (Director)



MYANMAR CITIZE\S BTTIT LT}TITED
STATEMENT OF CO}IPRf HE\SNT I\'COME
FOR THE YE.{R E\DED \T,\RCH 31. 2Or8

Note 2018

MMK

23,144,599,195
(13,933,412,245)

20,980,302,047

(11,538,592,739)

2017

MMK

Interest income
Interest expenses

Net interest income
Net fee and commission income

Other operating income

Income before operating expenses

Personnel expenses

Administration and general expenses

Depreciation and amort ization

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Authenticated by:

16

11

18

t9

9,211,176,940

3,541,600,559

425,523,351

9,447,709,309

3,391,892,467

7,024,095,022

20

2l

13,178,300,950

(5,567,879,910)

(2,924,330,099)

(727,993,069)

13,857,696,797

(4,601,753,501)

(902,430,429)

(535,873,997)

22

3,958,097,992

(786,728,107)
7,817,638,914

(l ,984,531 ,1 87)

3r171,369,775_ 5,833,101,097

3,171,369r775 5,833,101,097

Basic earnings per share 23 305 561

The accompanying accountingpolicies and explanatory informationform an integral part of the
financial statemeruts.

(Chief Executive Offi cer)

Da*'Sx'e Sl'e Myint
(Deputl' Managin g Director)

//

U Aung Aung
(Director)

U Tun Lwin
(Director)

6
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MYANMAR CITIZE\S B.T\X LI}IITET)
STATEMENT OF C.{,SH P1-Q\\ S

FOR THE YEAR E\DED }1\RCH 3 I. :018

Note 2018

MMK

3,1711369,775

727,993,069

(50,000)

70,604,009

2011

MMK

5,833,101,087

535,813,987

17,7 53

( 1 20,000)

(180,644,311)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVTTIES
Net profit after tax

Adjustments-

-Depreciation and amortization

-Written off
-Dividend income

-Prior year adjustment

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes

Working capital changes :

-Loans and advances

-Other assets

-Deposit from customers

-Other liabilities

Cash provided by/ (used in) operating activities

Income tax paid

Net cash provided by/ (used in) operating activities

CASII FLOW FROM II{VESTING ACTTVITIES
(Purchise)/sale of treasury bonds and investments

Dividend income

Purchase of properly and equipment

Addition of intangible assets

Net cash provided by/ (used in) investing activities

CASII FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVTTIES
Issue of share

Share premium

Dividends paid

Net cash provided by/ (used in) frnancing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 6

l. S =S'.:\lrint
l:: - _. '.1:-:_:i..9 Director)

36,486,067,667 (14,148,258,539)

3,969,916,853

(28,534,539,180)

1,645,052,178

56,183,333,567

3,812,545,580

6,188,222,516

(44,442,160,397)

3,250,475,954

19,599,706,010

3,225,497,378

37,076,309,598
(590,241,931)

(12,178,258,539)

(1,970,000,000)

(10,019,309,806)

50,000

(3,338,922,149)

(121,134,621)

3,361,223,886

120,000

(2,645,365,624)

(105,165,795)

(13,485,316,576) 6r0,812,467

(3,129,799,437)

2,r35,165,000

320,274,750

(3,120,295,800)

(3,129,799,437) (664,856,050)

19,870,951,654
26,214,297,298

(14,202,302,122)
40,416,599,420

46,085,248,952 26,214,297,298

The accompanying accolulting policies ond erplanatory information form an integral part of the

financial statements.

Authenticated b1':

U Aung Aung
(Director)

U Tun Lwin
(Director)(Chief Erecutir : Cr: : 

=
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MYANMAR CITIZE\S B T\X LI}IITED
NOTES TO THE Ft\ $CI-\L ST TTE}IE\TS
FOR THE YEAR E\DED \LA.RCH 3I. :I.}18

General

Myanmar Citizens Bank Limri3J {iie Bankt is incorporated and domiciled in Myanmar and has its

registered office at No. li6 160. Sule Pagoda Road. KyauktadaTownship,Yangon Region, Union of
Myanmar.

The Bank was established as a public bank on October 30, 1991 as per Registration No. 27411991.-

1992 under The Myanmar Companies Act. The Bank was permitted to carry out banking business

under new License No. Ma Va Ba/Pa Ba (R)-0 1/0 8l (7) 2016 issued by the Central Bank of Myanmar

(CBM) according to Section 176 of the Myanmar Financial Institution Law 2076. The principal

activities of the bank are to acceptance of public deposit, grant loans, trade services and other

permitted activities subject to the approval of the CBM under chapter IX of the Financial Institution

Law.

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on June 24,

2018.

Basic of preparation and accounting policies

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Myanmar Financial

Reporting Standards (MFRS) as modified by the Central Bank of Myanmar Guidelines. In preparing

these financial statements, certain reclassifications and realrangements have been made in 2011

financial statements to conform to the classifications used in 2018. The financial statements have been

prepared under the historical cost basis.

The accounting policies adopted by the Bank are consistent with those adopted in the previous years.

Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1 Functional and presentation currency

The Bank's financial statements are presented in Myanmar Kyat (MMK), which is also the Bank's
functional currency.

3.2 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Bank's functional currency ("foreign currencies") are

recorded in the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

transactions. At each reportin-u date. monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are

translated at the rates prer ailing on the reporling date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value

that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the date when

the fair value was determined. \on-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in

a foreign currenc),are not translated. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the translation of monetan items, are included in profit or loss for the period.

The closing foreien exchange rate s used by the Bank were (in MMK):

\f.::-:..: --
\1=:: ' .. :. S

USD EUR SGD

1362.00 t455.40 974.49

1335.00 t642.40 1018.00

2.

3.

9



MYANMAR CITIZE\S B$K LI\IITED
NOTES TO THE FI\.T.\CL\L ST{TE}IE\TS
FOR THE YEAR E\DED :018

3.3 Interest income and erpenses

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets
classified as held-for-trading and arailable-for-sale, interest and expenses are recognised under
"interest income", "interest e\pense" respectively in the statement of profit or loss using tlie
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
liability and of allocating the interest income over expense over the relevant period. The effecrire
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shofter period, where appropriate. to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the future credit losses.
Significant fees and transactions costs integral to the effective interest rate, as well as premiums or
discounts are also considered.

For impaired financial assets where the value of the financial asset has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss.

3.4 Fees and commission income

Fees and commission are generally recognized when services are rendered.

3.5 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

3.6 Other operating income

Other income includes gains or losses resulting from foreign exchange transactions.

3.7 Employee compensation

(a) Staff provident fund
The fund is funded from the monthly contribution which is determined based on the monthly
salary is contributed by the Bank and its employees at a rate of Syorespectively.

(b) Bonus plan

The Bank reco-enizes a liabilin and an expense for bonuses, based on a formula approved by
the management of the Bank. *hich takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Bank's shareholders and aller certain adjustments. The Bank recognizes a provision when
contractuallr oblised ro c:\ !-r \\ltere there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation to par .

3.8 Income tax

Current ta.\ a-is3:: ::-: :r :! :-: :.=;!tred at the amount expected to be recovered from orpaid
to the taratiu'r : r- r - :: -,: :..::,. ., parable on the taxabll profit forthe year, usingtaxrates
enacted or s-t:::::.,: -. ---__:_ _. :- = :;:!rning date.

(
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MYANMAR CITIZE\S B{\I\ LI}IITED
NOTES TO THE FL\I\CL\L ST.\TE}IE\TS
FOR THE YEAR E\_DED }I.{RCH -I1. ]018

3.9 Financial assets and financial liabilities

(a) Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are classif-led into the following categories - financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss. loans and receivables, financial investments held-to-maturity,
financial investments available-for-sale and other non-derivative financial liabilities.
Management determines the classification of financial instruments at initial recognition.

(i) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments classified in this category consist of financial assets held-for-trading.
Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired principally for the
purposes of selling or repurchasing it in the near term.

Financial instruments included in this category are recognized initially at fair value and

transaction costs are taken directly to profit or loss. Gains and losses from changes in fair
value and dividend income are included directly in "Net gains and losses on financial
instruments" in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income is recognised as "interest
income" in the statement of profit or loss. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets

held-for-trading are recognized at settlement date.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market. Financial assets classified into this

category include cash and balances with Banks, and loans and advances. They are

presented as current assets, except for those expected to be realized later than 12 months

afterthe statement of financial position date which are non-culrent assets. These financial

assets are initially recognized at fair value, including direct and incremental transaction

costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest income on loans and receivables is recognized in "interest income" in the

statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on loans and advances are recognized in the

statement of profit or loss as "allowance for impairment on loans and advances".

(iii) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Bank's management has the positive

intention and abilit_v to hold to maturity. If the Bank was to sell other than an insignificant

amount of held-to-maturi1 financial assets, the whole category would be tainted and

reclassified as arailable-for-sale. They are presented as non-current assets, except for

those maturin,s uithin 1l months after the statement of financial position date which are

presented as currenl assets. These financial assets are initially recognized at fair value

includin_e direct and incremental transactions costs, and subsequently measured at

amortised cost usinS the etJectir e interest method. Interest on investment held-to-maturity

is included in r:.e s::r.rn.nr of profit or loss and is reported as "Interest income".

Impairment lu.SS3S. :: ':,r. 3;3 13;e'rgnized in the statement of profit or loss as "Impairment

on other a-is3:s

11
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(iv) Available.for-sale

Available-tbr-sale t-inancial assets are financial assets that are designated as such or are not
classified in anr of the three precedin,e categories.

After initial reco-snition. ar ailable-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any
gains or losses frorn changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses
on monetary instruments and interest calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale
equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the Bank's right to receive
payment is established.

The Bank's available-for-sale financial assets comprise investment in unquoted shares.
Investments in unquoted shares whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less impairment loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets which are not expected to be realised rvithin 12 months
after the financial year end are classified as non-current assets.

. (v) Other non-derivative financial liabilities

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognized at the fair value of
consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amorlised cost. The Bank
does not have any non-derivative financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost included deposits from customers,
deposits from Banks, and other borowed funds.

(b) Recognition and de-recognition

The Bank initially recognizes all financial assets and financial liabilities on the date that they
are originated and measured initially at fair value.

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset are expired or the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rervards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.
The Bank dereco-enizes a financial Iiability when the contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.

(c) Offsetting fi nancial instruments

Financial assets and liabililies are oftset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position rihen t:e:e is a leeallr enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an in:ei::--: :-- .::.: rri.r 3 re[ basis or torealize the asset and to settle the liability
simultaneouslr T:.. .. :.--: =:.::l.r the case for financial instruments with master netting
a-qreerrenls ::.: ::;:= - -- :-, r= :l=J :ssets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis in the
staternarll -: : i__ i : : .
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(d) Determination of fair r alue

All financial instrunrents are recognized initially at fair value. At initial recognition, the fair
value of a financial instrument is eenerally the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the
consideration -siren or receired. Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair value of financial
instruments is measured in accordance with the valuation methodologies generally accepted in
Myanmar.

Investments in unquoted equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost, and assessed for impairment at each reporting date.

3.10 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Loans and advances

Loans and advances of the Bank are classified as impaired when they fulfill any of the
following criteria:

Individual assessment

(i) Principal or interest or both are past due for ninety (90) days or more; or
(ii) Outstanding amount is in excess of approved limit for ninef (90) days or more in the

case ofoverdraft facilities; or
(iii)Where a loan is in arrears or the outstanding amount has been in excess of the approved

limit for less than ninety (90) days, the loan exhibits indications of significant credit
weaknesses.

For the determination of impairment on loans, the Bank assess at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan is impaired. A loan is impaired and impairment
losses are recongised only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the loan that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Bank use to determine that there is objective evidence of impairment
include:

(i) Any significant financial difficulty of the borrower;
(ii) A breach ofcontract, such as a default or delinquency;
(iii)A high probability of bankruptcy or other financial reorganization of the borower;
(iv) Concerns over the viability of the bomower's business operations and its capaciq, to trade

successfully out of financial difficulties and to generate sufficient cash flows to service
its debt obligations: or

(v) Any adverse ne\\s or derelopments affecting the local economic conditions or business
environment ri'hich u ill adr erselr affect the repayment capacity of the customer.

The Bank first assesses indiriduallr uhether objective evidence of impairment exists for all
loans.

If there is ob.lectir e er iien;e that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of loss is
measured as tlte Cilit:::;e l.i\\e.n the loans' carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future ;'l:- :1 ,- .'. s T:.: :srn ins amount of the loan is reduced through the use of an
allouance acJ!'-:: ::. 1:.-.= :: - -.:: ..i loss is recognized in profit or loss. Where appropriate,
the calculaiir: --: :.-- ::=!.:: '.:.-e ..i estimated future cash flows of a collateralized loanI

i
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reflects the cash f-lo* s that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the

collateral. *hether or not foreclosure is probable.

Where a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for loan

impairment. Such loans are rvritten off after the necessary procedures have been completed

and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of the amounts

previously u,ritten off are recognized in profit or loss.

Collective assessment

The Bank's collective assessment is currently maintained at2oh of the total outstanding loans,

net of individual assessment allowance, being the arrangement prescribed under Central Bank
of Myanmar guidelines and policy.

(b) Rescheduled and restructured loans

Where a loan shows evidence of credit weaknesses, the Bank may seek to renegotiate the

loan rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve an extension of the

payment arrangements via rescheduling or the renegotiation of new loan terms and conditions

via restructuring. Management monitors the renegotiated loan to ensure that all the rer ised

terms are met and that the repayments are made promptly for a continuous period.

(c) Held-to-maturity

The Bank assess at each reporting date whether objective evidence of impairment of financial
investments held-to-maturity exists as a result of one or more loss events and that loss er ent

has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial investment or group of
financial investments that can be reliably estimated.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognized as the

difference between the acquisition cost and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows, less any impairment loss previously recognized. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decrease and the decrease can be objectively related to an event

occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the

impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

(d) Available-for-sale

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale (AFS), objective evidence

would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its

cost, significant financial difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the disappearance of an

active trading market.

If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost

(net of an1 principal parment and amortisation or accretion) and its current fair value, less

any impairment loss prer iouslr recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to
profit or loss.

Impairment lcrSSeS cx \FS equitl inrestments are not reversed in profit or loss in the

subsequent per:rJ= I:.::e:s: in tatr r alue. if any, subsequent to impairment loss is recognised

in other cc:-.::.:.-:...',: i:r...me, For AFS debt investments, impairment losses are

subsequer:lr :.\::.;: .:. ::--:i: cr loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be

objectirelr:;..:=::--'r ='.=rirrCCUrrir.rgaftertherecognitionoftheimpairmentlossinprofit
or l!'sS
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3.11 Cash and cash equir alent-s

Cash and cash equiralents comprise cash at Bank and on hand, demand deposits, and short-term,
highly liquid inr estments that are readilr convertible to known amount of cash and which are
subjectto an insi_snificant risk of changes in value.

3.12 Property and equipment and depreciation

All items of properly and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of properly
and equipment is recognised as an asset if, an I only if, it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cosf of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of replaced parts is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss when they are incurred.

When significant parts of.an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of properry and equipment.

Subsequent to initial recognition, properry and equipment other than freehold land and buildings
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. if
any.

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis calculated to write off the cost of each asser ro
its residual value over the term of its estimated useful lives of the assets at the folloriing principal

- annual rates:

Land& Building
Leasehold improvement
MotorVehicle
Furniture and Office Equipment
Plant & Machinery

Years

40-80

5

8

5-20

t6

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The policy for
the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 3 . I 5.

The residual value, useful Iife and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end,
and adjusted prospectivelv, if appropriate.

An item of propeq. plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are erpected from its use. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the asset is
included in profit or loss in the rearrhe asset is de-recognised.
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3.13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured at cost on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they' are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if
any. Intangible assets u ith finite useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication of impairment.
The amortisation charges are recognised in the profit or loss. The useful life and amortization
method are reviewed annually. Software licenses and rights have an estimated useful life of l0
years and are amortised over that period.

3.14 Foreclosed properties

Foreclosed properties are those acquired in full or partial satisfaction ofdebts and are stated at the
lower of cost and fair value.

3.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets, such as properly and equipment, investment properties and foreclosed
propefties, are reviewed for impairment annually, or whenever events or chanses in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where such indications
exist, the carrying amount of the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. uhich is the
higher of the fair vale less costs to sell and the value-in-use. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounl.

These assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each repofting date. No non-financial assets were impaired in 2018 and,2017 .

3.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equi$z when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash or
other financial assets.

3.17 Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent liabilities for services provided to the Bank prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one y'ear
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). Otherwise, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Other liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at cost.

3.18 Provisions

Provisions are recosnized uhen the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events. It is more Jikell than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are re\ ie$3J 31 each t-inancial rear end a-djusted to reflect the current best estimate. If
it is no longer pr.'b'aL'l: tl::: :r cuttlou of economic resources will be required to settle the
obli-uation. the prlri=:,-: :s ::',3-isl. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
proYisions are Cls--l-:-:;: --i.:.: f Jurrent pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks
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specific to the liabiliq \\'hen discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage

of time is recognised as a f-lnance cost.

3.19 Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflorv of economic benefits will be required, or the amount

cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial

position and is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent

liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the

Bank in the current and previous financial year ends.

3.20 Related parties

A parry is related to the Bank if:

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the parfy:

(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Bank (this includes
parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);

- (ii) has an interest in the Bank that gives it significant influence over the Bank; or
(iii)has joint control over the Bank;

(b) the party is an associate of the Bank;

(c) the parly is a joint venture in which the Bank is a venture:

(d) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Bank or its parents;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for

which significant voting power in such reside resides, directly or indirectly, with any

individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Bank, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Bank.

3.21 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that uould be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction benr een market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a
principal market. in the me.st adrantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the

most advantaqeLrus rnsrket must be accessible by the Bank.

The fair r alue .-: 3: i::-: --: : .,.:.lln is measured using the assumptions that market participants

act in their e g-t-l -- r.r, r-:. .:.:;. -.: 
"r 

hen pricing the asset or liability.
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The Bank uses \aluaii.'n iechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are aratlable tLr measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimisine the use of unobsen,able inputs.

All assets and liabilities lbr rihich fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised rvithin the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Bank determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the financial year end.

4. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Bank's financial statements requires management to make judgments. estimates
and assumptions that affectthe reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and Iiabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. U,certaintr about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carn inu
amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, management has made the folloriine
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

4.1 Impairment of credit exposures

The Bank reviews its significant credit portfolios to assess impairment at each reporting date. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recognized, the Bank makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating an impairment trigger. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the credit quality or
deterioration in the payment conduct of borrowers individually or as a group. These judgements
are applied in line with its internal policy on determining impaired loans,

Judgement is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows when determining an impairment loss for credit exposures. In estimating these cash flows,
the Bank makes judgements about the borrower's financial situation and the net realisable value of
collateral. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results
may differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.

4.2 Fair yalue measurement

Fair value is the price that uould be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction benr een market participants at the measurement date.

Where the classification ola t-tnancial asset or liability results in it being measured atfair value,
wherever possible. the tarr r alue is detenrined by reference to the quoted bid or offer price in the
most advantaseous actire market ttr \\hich the Bank has immediate access. An adjustment for
credit risk is alsr. inccrl.':::=; i:'.:.. the tair ralue as appropriate.

Where no actl\. r.:r:=l =\ >:s :,-: a particular asset or liability, the Bank uses a valuation
technique to 3-. .; :: :-; .-. . ...-=. :::iuding the use of transaction prices obtained in recent arm,s
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length transactions. discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation techniques, based on market
conditions and risks eristin-e at reporting date. In doing so, fair value is estimated using a valuation
technique that makes marimum use of observable market inputs and places minimal reliance upon
entity-specifi c inputs.

4.3 Depreciation of propertl'and equipment

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset's

estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these propefi and
equipment to be within a range of 5 to 80 years. These are common life expectancies applied in
this industry.

Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the
economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets and therefore future depreciation
charges could be revised. The carrying amount of the Bank's properly and equipment at the
reporling date is disclosed in Note 10.

4.4 Income taxes

There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination mar be

different from the initial estimate. The Bank recognised tax liabilities based on its understandine
of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of
business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initialll,
recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in
which such determination is made.

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

When recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-in-use of
the cash generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make an

estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash generating unit and also to apply a

suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows.

5. Financial risk management

The Bank's business activities involve the use of financial instruments. These activities expose the
Bank to a variety of financial risks, nrainly credit risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk.

The Bank's financial risks are managed by the various management commiffees within the authority
delegated by the Board of Directors. These management committees formulate, review and approve
policies and limits to monitor and mana-ue risk exposures under their respective supervision. The major
policy decisions and proposals approved by these committees are subject to further review by the
Board of Directors.

t9
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The main financial risks that t:; B":.i is erposed to and how they are managed is set out below:

5.1 Interest rate risk

cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of the changes in market interest rate. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
of a financial instrument * ill fluctuate due to the changes in market rates.

The Bank is exposed to interest rate risk, through the impact of rate changes between the interest
income and interest expenses at interest rates defined according to differeni types of deposits from
customers with determinate or indeterminate maturities.

The table below summaries the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk as at 3l March 201g. The tablesindicate effective average interest rates at the reporting date and the periods, in which the financial
instruments are repriced or mature, whichever is earlier.

Uptol
month

MMK

I to 3 >3 months
months to 12

months

MMK MMK

>l to 5 >5 years
years

Total
Interest

Sensitive

MMK

Non-
interest

sensitive

MMK

Total

MMK MMK
million)

Assets

Cash and balances
with Banks
Loans and
advances

- Not irupaired

- Impaired *

Investment

Total assets

3,413.86

16,572.12

16,127.47

32,064.76
57, r 79.88

\0,412.47

622.91

331.00

187 ,629.64

622.91

57.5 I 0 88

6t,97r.s0 93,472.32

mt

2,232.02 177,2r7.r7

46,085.25 46,085.25

6,543.00 2,000.00

19,985.99 48,192.23 68,514.50 95,472.32 2,232.02 234,397.05 57,451.63 29t,8-r8.68

Liabilities and Shareholders, equity
Deposits from
cusromers 143,799.93 32,056.23 44,308. l5

10.00 8,412.t9_

- 220,153.31

- 8,422.19

I 1,878. l0

220,153.31

8,422.19

1 1,878. l0

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Total Iiabitities

Total interest
sensitivity gap

143,788.93 32,056.23 44,318.15 8,412.19 - 228,575.50 11,879.10 240,453.60

(123,802.95) 16,136.00 24,196.35 87,060.13 2,232.02 5,821.55 45,573.53 51,395.08

* This is arrived after deducting the individual allowance from gross impaired loans.

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Bank's profit after tax to an up and down 7%o:

Impact to profit before tar
Impact to profit after tax

- lyo

MMK
(million)

(s8.22)
(46.s7)

t0

I
t
r
r
r
r
I
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I
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I
I
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5.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk li:r::: Bank uill incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to
discharge their ccntractual ..b,lieati.rns The Bank manages and controls credit risk by setting limits
on the amount of risk it is riillins to accept for individual counterparties and for industry
concentrations, and br monitoring e\posures in relation to such limits.

During the year under rerieu. the Bank revised its Credit Policy which gives directions on the

Credit related activities of the bank rihich establishes lending criteria, credit risk identification,
mitigation and monitoring activities. The credit review process provides early identification of
possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparlies, including regular collateral revisions.
The credit review process aims to allow the Bank to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks
to which it is exposed and take corrective actio

The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments as represented by the

categories of financial assets on the statement of financial position is limited to the carrying
amounts on the reporting date, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. For the
statement of financial position financial assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their
carrying amount.

The table below sets out information about the financial assets held by the Bank:

Loans and advances

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due but not impaired

Individually past due and impaired

Investment securities(l)

2018

MMK (Million)

180,592.59

7,037.05

718.50

2017

MMK Million)

155,218.59

4,499.42

120.00

I 88,348. l4
57,509.88

1s9,83 8.01

47 ,490.57

245,858.02 207,328.58

(l)Investment 
securities exclude equity securities which are not exposed to credit risk.

The investment securities that are neither past due nor impaired includes government securities
which are substantially with high credit-ratings in Myanmar.

Loans and advances past due but not impaired: Certain loans and advances are past due but not
impaired as the collateral values of these loans and advances are in excess of the principal and

interest outstanding.

Loans and advances individually past due and impaired: Certain loans and advances are past due

and considered impaired as the recoverable values of these loans and advances are likely to be

lower than its carn ins r alue.
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5.3 Liquidity risk and ca-sh flou risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they

fall due, such as upon maturiq of deposits and draw-down of loans.

The Bank manages liquiditl' risk in accordance with the Board approved Asset and Liability
Management policy frameu'ork. This framework comprises policies, controls and limits. These

controls and policies include setting of cash flow mismatch limits, monitoring of liquidity early

warning indicators, stress-test analysis of cash flows in liquidity crisis scenarios and establishment of
a comprehensive contingency funding plan. The Bank is also required by regulators to maintain a

ceftain percentage of its liability base in the form of cash and other liquid assets as a buffer against

unforeseen liquidity requirements. The main objectives are honouring all cash outflow commitments

on an on-going basis, satisfuing statutory liquidi[ and reserve requirements, and avoiding raising
funds at market premiums or through forced sale of assets.

The tables below set out the remaining contractual maturities of the Bank's non-derivative financial

assets and financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis.

Less than I
year

MMK(Million)

46,085.25

81,512.83

55,179.98

95,704:j;
2,000.00

11,130.97

33 1.00

5,186.33

Total
NINIK(\Iiltion)

46.085.25

188,348.14

57,510.88

5,186.33

More than 1 No-specific
year maturity

MMK(Million) MMKMillion)
Balance at 31 March 2018

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash in hand and at bank

Loans and advances*

Investments

Other assets

Total assets

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from Customers

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap
(d 

exclude specific provision for loon losses

182,777.96 97,704.34 16,648.30 297,130.60

220,153.31

19,386.31 913.98

220,153.31

20,300.29

239,539.62 913.98 240,453.60

(56,761.66) 97,704.34 15,734.32 56,677.00

The Bank's liquidity ratios as of 31 March 2018 and2017 were 33.62% and30.52%o respectively

and hence more than 20Yo fxed by the Central Bank of Myanmar as per its instruction. (1012017)

5.4 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings and economic value of foreign currency assets,

liabilities and financial derivatives caused by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

The Bank's foreign exchange exposures comprise banking (non-trading) foreign exchange
exposures. Non-trading foreign erchange exposures are principally derived from investments and
funding activities and customer businesses.

:l
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FOR THE YEAR E\DED }I.{RCH 31,2018

The table belorr analrses the net foreign exchange positions of the Bank as at 3l March 2018 by
major currencies. u hich are mainly in Myanmar Kyat, US Dollar, Euro and Singapore Dollar.

Assets

Cash and balances lith
Banks
Loans and advances to
customers
- Not impaired

- Impaired

Investment Securities

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from Customers

Borrowings

Total liabilities

Net open position

Strengthenedby l0%
Weakened by l0%

)Il anmar Kyat United State Dollar Euro
\llIK(N{illion) MMK(Million) MMK(Mittion)

Singapore Dollar Total
MMK(Million) MMK(Million)

242.43 46,085.2513,101.70 871.0131,870.1 I

187,629.64

718.50

57,510.88

. - ,,,,u,,,?,|l

57,510.88

277,729.13 13,101.70 871.01 242.43 291,944.27

220,t53.31

8,422.19

219,387.74 9,187.76 228.5--i.50

58,341.39 3,913.94 871.01 63..368.--

Sensitivitv analysis of foreign exchange risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis of the Bank's pre-tax profit to a reasonabh
possible change in the USD, Euro and SGD against the respective functional currencies of the Bank.
with all other variables held constant.

210,965.55

8,422.19

9,187.76

United State Dollar Euro Singapore Dollar
MMKMillion) MMK(Million) MMKMillion)

391.39 87.10 24.24
(3et.3e) (87.10) (24.24)

5.5 Operational risk

Operational risk, which is inherent in all business activities, is the potential for financial loss, and
business instability arising from failures in internal controls, operational processes or the systems
that support them.

The goal of operational risk management is to balance cost and risk within the constraints of the risk
appetite of the Bank as established by Board approved Operational Risk Management Framework
and to be consistent with the prudent management required of a large financial organization.

It is recognized that such risks can never be entirely eliminated and that the cost of controls in
minimizing these risks ma\ our\\ei,sh the potential benefits. Accordingly, the Bank continues to
invest in risk manasement and miti-sation such as business continuity management and incident
management. In retnforcement of the implementation of the Bank's risk strategy, independent
checks on risk issues are undertaken br the internal audit function.

-)
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5.6 Legal and compliance risk

Legal risk is the risk that the business activities of the Bank have with unintended or unexpected
legal consequences. It includes risk arising from:

(i) Inadequate documentation. legal or regulatory incapacity, insufficient authority of a counterparly
and uncertainty about the validity or enforceability of a contract in counterparly insolvency;

(ii) Actual or potential violations of law or regulation (including activity unauthorized for a Bank
and which may attract a civil or criminal fine or penalty);

(iii)Failure to protect the Bank's property;
(iv) The possibility of civil claims (including acts or other events which may lead to litigation or

other disputes); and

(v) Loss or increased charges associated with changes in, or errors in the interpretation of, taxation
rates or law.

Compliance risk arises from a failure or inability to comply with the laws, regulations or codes

applicable to the financial services industry. Non-compliance can lead to fines. public reprimands.
and enforced suspension of operations or, in extreme cases, withdrawal of authorization to operare.

The Bank identifies and manages legal and compliance risk through effective use of its internal and

external legal and compliance advisers. The Compliance function is formulated to ensure that the
bank comply with regulations.

Bank has complied and followed the recently issued Central Bank direction (The Republic of the
Union of Myanmar Central Bank of Myanmar Notification No-1712017 dated on July 7, 2017) on
asset classification and provisioning on Loans and Advances.

5.7 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to diversif, its sources of capital, and

to maintain an optimal level of capital which is adequate to support business activities and

commensurate with the Bank's risk profile, and to meet its regulatory requirements.

"Capital funds" is defined as listed below:

Paid-up ordinary share capital
Retained profit
Reserves

2018
MMK

52,004,930,000

2,211,238,793

15,480,197,122

2017
MMK

52,004,930,000

332,310,053

14,117,152,078

69,696,365,915 66,454,392,13I

The Bank's Regulatory Capital Adequacy Ratio as of 31 March 2018 and2017 were 25.68%o and
36.510 , respectivell'. and hence more than 8%of regulatory capital adequacy, 402 minimum
tier (l )'s capital as prescribed b1 the Central Bank of Myanmar Notification No. 16/2017.

11
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6. Cash in hand and at bank

Cash in hand

Cash and balances with central banks

Cash with banks and other financial institutions

7. Loans and advances

Demand loans
Hire purchase

Trade guarantee

SME two step loan

Bank overdraft

SME loan

Specific provision for loan loss

Industrial Manufacturing

Production

Transportation

Trading

Service

Construction

Agriculture
Live stock

General

Industrial Manufactu ri n s

Trading

Construction

46,085,249,952 26,214,297,299

2018

MMK

17,141,784,505

15,073,937,022

13,869,527,425

2017

MMK

5,64L,005,823

9,189,871,599

rr,383,419,887

I
I
T

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
:

:

:

T

T

T

2018

MMK

100,040,289,500
62,936,414,921
1,779,419,900

8,422,192,500

14,359,593,519

810,231,600

2017

MMK

104,060,530,000
44,891,981.3 79

1,527.211.000

6,3 73.7 5 0.000

2,984.113.629

188,349,140,940

(95,592,652)

159,838,009.008

( 120,000,000)

188,252,549,199 159,718,009,009

(i) Loans and advances onalysed by type of in&utry are asfollows:

2018

MMK

30,276,210,097

Ir181,752,269

1,950,997,370

47,100,997,955

33,645,772,533

8,645,243,695

63,861,273,069

93,140,000

1,592,753,964

20t7
MMK

29,235,832,471

1,866,848,807

1,837,175,963

40,449,143,171

28,675,48I,090

10,487,289,975

45,224,515,131

88,750,000

2,038,973,500

188,349,140,940 159,83 8,009,009

(ii) Specific provisions for loan loss analysed by type of industry are as follows
2018

MMK

2,g43r0gg

81,480,356

ll,269,lgg

2017

MMK

3,569,017

r02,284,459

14,146,524

25

95,592,652 120,000,000
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I 8. Investments

Unquoted equtty investments

Treasury Bonds

Treasury Bills
Fixed Deposits at other banks

Myanmar Payment Union

Credit Bureau

Prepayment and advance

Receivable from business Partner

Deposit for 663 mobile money

Interest receivable on investment

Debit note receivable

2018

MMK

1,ooo,00o

17,500,000,000

8,292,442,150

31,387,437,262

200,000,000

130,000,000

2017

MMK

1,0oo,oo0

24,500,000,000

22,660,569,606

200,000,000

130,000,000
I

I

I

I

I
T

I

57,510,879,412 47,491,569,606

No impairment loss occurred in 2018 for investment securities.

Unquoted equity investments classified as available-for-sale are carried at cost. less impairment

because the fair value cannot be reliably estimated using valuation techniques supported b'r

observable market data determined.

9. Other assets

2017

MMK

4,714,986,023_

73,307,295

1,242,846,972

210,000,000

5,186,329,443 6,247,140,290

2018

MMK

3,768,304,886

122,048,765

67,674,144

1,228,301,648_

It)
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l
I
I
l

ll. Intangible assets

Cost

At I April
Additional

Balance at 31 March

Accumulated amortization
At 1 April
Amortization for the year

Balance at 31 March

Net Book Value as at 31 March

12. Deposits from customers

Current Deposits

Saving Deposits

Time Deposits

Current (ATM)
Current (Citizen Card)

Call Deposits

13. Other liabilities

Sundry Deposits

Refinance loan

Payment Order

Internal remittance

Accrued and other liabilities
Unclaimed Liabilities
Staff tund

Provision for Income Tax
Debit note payable

2018

MMK

189,241,633

127,134,621

2017

MMK

84,075,838

105,165,795

316,376,254 189,241,633

73,481,249

75,222,133 73,481,24;

148,703,392 73,481,249

167,672,872 1 15,760,3 84

2018

MMK

23,432,617,270

64,715,764,947

112,545,209,000

1,817,949,792

323,123,053

17,318,739,223

:01 -

\I\IK

20,821,109,7 1l

65,673,520,282

62,642,646,000

7,220,333,639

309,491,101

73,302,868,875

220,153,303,175 163,969,969,609

2018

MMK

1,901,629,063

8,422,192,500

498,071,312

62,575,004

7,583,945,194

72,210,390

913,978,901

786,728,107

58,961,604

2017

MMK

4,836,749,463

6,373,750,000

526,590,572

137,337,449

5,034,640,277

81,714,027

642,231,364

1,984,537,787

t8

20,300,291,075 19,677,544,932
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FOR THE YEAR E\DED }L{RCH 3I,2018

14. Share capital

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of 5,000
Kyat each

Issued and fully paid:

Share capital

15. Reserves

Balances at7.4.2017

Adjustment

Provision for Reserves

Balances at 31.3.2018

Balances at 1.4.2016

Adjustment

Provision for Reserves

Balances il31.3.2017

Number of Shares

2018 20t7

15,000,000 15,000,000

Amount (MMIO
2018 2017

75,000,000,000 75,000,000,000

10,400,986 10,400,986 52,004,930,000 52,004,930,000

Statutorv
Reserve Fund(l)

5,788,659,000

792,842,444

General Provision
for Loan and

Advance(2)

3,196,760,279

570,202,600

Total

8,997A1927t

1,363,Ms,W
6,581,501,444 3,766,962,879 12,000,000 10,360,464322

4,322,85r,500

1,465,907,500

2,305,5I7,779

89I,242,500

85,182,099

(75,182,099)

2,000,000

6,713,551,376

(75,t82,099)

2,359,050,000

5,788,659,000 3,196,760,279 12,000,000 8,997,419,279

(1)ln 
compliance with Section 35(a) of the Financial Institutions of Myanmar Law,25%o of the net profit

after tax has been set aside as statutory reserye fund and is not distributable as cash dividends.
(2)In compliance with Central Bank Instruction No (6),2% of total balance of loans and advances have
been set aside as reserve for bad and doubtful debts.

)9
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16. Interest income

Interest on loans and adr ances

Interest on hire purchase

Interest on trade guarantee

Interest on two step loan

Interest on SME loan

Interest on investment

Note: Interest income rates
Interest on loan and advance

Deposit with other banks;

Fixed deposit rate are as follow:
I month

3 month

6 month

9 month

l2 month

17. Interest expenses

Interest on saving deposits

Interest on time deposits

Interest on call deposits

Interest on ATM deposit

Interest on stafffund

Note:

l month
3 month

6 month

9 month

12 month

2018

MMK

11,613,309,714

6,395,268,732

225,145,065

373,458,372

25,612,141

4,511,795,161

2017

MMK

1r,505,728,198

4,548,207,858

164,492,060

127,859,502

4,634,014,429

23,144,589,185 20,980,302,047

12.00"h

8.00%

9.00"/"

9.25"/"
9.50'A
9.75'/"

10.00%

2018

MMK

4,792,168,877

8,000,514,181

1,054,824,524

35,487,440

50,417,223

12.00%

8.00%

9.00%

9.25%

9.50%

9.7sYo

10.Offlo

2017

MMK

5,061,242,752

5,303,200,776

1,117,320,307

21,675,349

35,1 53,555

13,933,412,245 11,538,592,739

The savings deposit rate was 8.25% and is calculated on the minimum balance of the account during

the period from the 5 day to end of the r-nonth.

Fixed deposits rate are as follows:

2017

MMK
9.00%
9.25%

950%
9.75%

t0.00%

Call deposit rate was 4%o on any amount and was calculated based on minimum daily balance. The
bank had promotional call deposit rates earning 8%o np to October 3I,2017 and 6.50/o from November
1, 2017 to January 2, 2018 calculated on the minimum daily balance on the account balances over I 0
million kyats. Starting from January 2, 2018, the interest rate was 4%o for any amount on minimum
daily balance of call deposit.

2018

MMK
9.00"
9.250

9.65'/"
9.90'/"

10.150h

30
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18. Net fee and commission income

Fees and commissions Income

Commission income

Services fee income

663 commission

Card related income

Other fees income

Fees and commission expenses

Bank commission and service charges

Card related expenses

Other fee expenses

Net fees and commission income

19. Other operating income

2018

MMK

2,584,587,658

1,093,436,539

929,400

30,163,045

15,320,900

20t7

MMK

2,389,743,316

1,230,732,269_

3,564,400

3,724,437,542 3,624,039,985

33,130,098

148,905,285

801,600

33,357,593

198,789,925

182,836,983 232.t17.518

3,541,600,559 3.391.891.16-

Income from foreign currency transactions

Miscellaneous income

Decrease of specific provision
Dividend income

20. Personnel expenses

Salaries and wages (local)

Salaries and wages (foreign)

Director' s remuneration

Contribution to employee benefit

Other staff related expenses

2018

MMK

207,186,035

193,879,968

24,407,348

50,000

2017

MMK

782,327,539

241,647,483

120,000

425,523,351 1,024,095,022

2018

MMK

3,431,631,835

1,312,400,977

53,450,000

270,865,573

499,531,425

20t7
MMK

2,744,289,201

1,153,912,046

39,650,000

170,860,160

493,042,100

31

5,567,879,810 4,601,753,507
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21. Administration and general erpenses

Office supply

Utilities expenses

Travel and transportation

Rate and tax

Rent

Insurance

Donation and entertainment

Marketing and advertising expenses

Research and development

Training
Registration and license

Professional service fee

Repair and maintenance

Other and miscellaneous

Loss/(gain) on revaluation

Profit before tax
Adjustment for recording the decrease of specific

provision
Adjustment for dividend income

Net taxable income

Income tax provision for the year

2018

MMK

110,016,279

4r3,414,327

345,686,877

77,444,705

763,772,021

50,854,471

165,269,190

59,398,861

20,897,422

5,481,000

268,649,915

116,387,784

346,673,162

125,781,224

54,602,851

2017

MMK

18,905,214

211,127,442

220,425,882

20,799,884

206,134,450

29,709,736

114,036,477

7,239,330

16,853,414

194,186,912

3 0.2 7 8.700

1 65.691.01:

207.8+7.1l l

(601.106.r95 )

2,924,330,089 902,430.129

22. Incomc tax expense

The Bank calculates the period income tax expenses using the tax rate that would be applicable to the

expected total annual earnings. The calculation of income tax is as follow:

2018

MMK

3,958,097,882

(24,407,348)

(50,000)

2017

MMK

7,817,638,874

(120,000)

3,933,6401534
786,728,107

7,817,518,874
1,984,537,787
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23. Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial period.

2018 20t7

Net profit attributable to equity holders (MIvII()

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

Basic earnings per share (MMK)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Net profit attributable to equity holders (I\ffvfl()

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Effects of dilution
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue

Diluted earnings per share (I\,ffvfl()

24. Dividend

Paid:
In respect of financial year ended 31 March 2017, a ftrst
and final dividend of6Yo per ordinary share
In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2076, a
first and final dividend of l3%per ordinary share
In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2015, a
first and final dividend of l3Yo per ordinary share

3,171,369,775 5,833,101,087

10,400,986 10,400,986
30s s61

2018 2011

3,171,369,775 5.833.101.081

10,400,986 10,400,986

10,400,986 10,400,986

2018

MMK

3,109,997,400

19,802,037

20t7
MMK

3,012,987,621

107,308,179

:

:

:

:

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31

March 2018, of 4Yo on 10,400,986 ordinary shares, amounting to a dividend payable of 2,080,197,200

Kyats will be proposed for shareholders' approval. The financial statements for the current financial
year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be

accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 March
2019.
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25. Related party transactions

Related parties include the Bank's key management personnel and their related parties. Keymanagement personnel refer to the Bank's directors and members of its Management ExecutiveCommittee and officer.
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following significant relatedparty transactions took place during the financialyear,on terms agreed between the parties.

MYANMAR CITIZE\S BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FN{\CIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EN-DED MARCH 31,2018

(a) Sales and purchase ofgoods and services
-Rental expenses paid to the firms in which the directors
ofthe bank have a financial interest

-Rental expenses paid to shareholder

(b) Outstanding balances
Prepaid rental to

- The firms in which the directors of the bank have a
financial interest

- Shareholder

, Deposit from
-The frms in which the directors of the bank have a

financial interest

-Shareholder

(c) Key management personnel compensation
- Salary and wages

- Director remuneration

2018

MMK

736,476,920

26,930,500

163,407,320

474,293,320

8,995,000

483,199,320

28,059,995,949

7,504,721,693

35,563,607,631

1,903,749,656

53,450,000

1,857,199,656

i+
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26. Guarantees and commitments

(a) Bank guarantees

2018
MMK

2,537,904,694

3,204,000,000

2017
MMK

6,210,176,201

2,722,959,432

5,741,9041694 8,933,135,633

Guarantees are contracts that contingently require the Bank to make payments to a guaranteed

parfy based on an event or a change in an underlying asset and liability. Guarantees are taken into
account in the general ledger on contra, which are not yet expired at the balance sheet date.

(b) Commitments

Guarantees in Local currency

Guarantees in foreign crrrency

Total guarantees

Undrawn overdraft

Co-Banking software

Total commitments

2018

MMK

1,154,885,917

1,537,960,117

2017

MMK

2,148,&7334

2,692,846,034 2,148,647,334
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